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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 11" Annual Report along with the Audited Statement of Accounts of the for
the year endad 31° March, 2017 together with the Auditors' Reporl and comments on the accounts by the Comptroller Auditor
General [CAG) of India.

1. COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS

Project has achieved overall progress of 99,40 % as on 31° March, 2017 Commercial operations of all units have started, Further
Project has achieved overall progress of 9363 %6 as on Quarter ended 30" June, 2017

Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Maodi, has inaugurated OPal, Petrochemical Complex and dedicated to the nation on
7" March, 2m7.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial perdormance of your Company for the year ended 31 March, 2017 is summarized below:

For the year ended on For the year ended on
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(¥ in millions) (% in millions)
Revenue from Operations 1084.48 3ar7s
Hevenue from Other Income 44,28 061
Expenses 12440.29 767.37
Profit (Loss) before Taxation and prior period Adjustments {(11301.53) (729.01)
Prior period Adjustments - -
Profit (Loss) before Taxation {11301.53) {729.01)
Tax Expenses:
Curmrent Tax NIL HNIL
Deferred Tax (2479.57) 1020.08
MAT Credit Entittemenl NIL NIL
Excess Provision of Income Tax for earlier year written back MIL NIL
Profit (Loss) for the Year (8B21.96) (1749.09)
Other Comprehensive Income (1.73) -
Total Comprehensive Income (8B23.69) (1749.09)

Cumulative Capital expenditure of ¥ 2,88,913.0% million (Previous Year ¥ 2,51.52741 million) and Operating expenditure of
¥ 6813,91 (Previous Year NIL) have been incurred up to 31" March, 2017 on cash basis,

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification in the Official Gazette dated February 16, 2015, notified the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to cerlain class of companies. Ind AS has replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed
under Sectlon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of Compantes (Accounts) Rule, 2014. For OPaL, Ind AS is applicable
from 1" April 2016, with a transition date ot April 1, 2015 and IGGAP as per pravious GAAP.

Thia Company has presanted a reconciliation of Shareholders’ equity under Previous GAAP and Ind AS at March 31, 2016, and
April 1, 2015 and of the Profit afler tax as per Previous GAAP and Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS for the year ended
March 31, 2016. Reter note 44 and 45 in the notes o accounts.

3. ECONOMIC SCENARIO-GLOBAL AND INDIAN
GLOBAL - CRUDE OIL AND PETROCHEMICALS

The world GDP grew at 3.1% in 2016 and with buoyant financial markets along with expected recovery in manufacturing and trade,
the growth is expected to be better al approx. 3.5% in 2017 and 2018. Thesa growth projections however, are subject to low
productivity growth and structural impediments that pose risks especially In developing countries. Headline inflation has been
picking up in advanced economies due lo higher commadily prices, while core inflation has largely remained subdued and
heterogengous.
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While the global weaknesses in demand growth ane likely to
prove transitory, particularly in post currency-reform India, it
was led by low price environment. Brent crude oll price
averaged § 48.6/bbl in FY 2017 as compared to § 47.5/bbl in
the previous year, For most ol the year, price remainad in the
range of $45-55/bbl with prices getting modarated in Q4 of
FYa2m7

The global oil supply growth remained at incremental
0.9 mb/d towards the end ol the fiscal, as both OPEC and
non-0OPEC countries produced more. Majority of gains were
dominated by non-QPEC, particularly the US. OPEC crude
output rose after comabacks particularly in Libya and
Migeria, which are exempied from supply cuts,

Brent Oil: USD/bbi

as

T R TR M R L i
$ § 333 58 & &3¢ 3
Souce: OPEC

INDIAN ECONOMY- PETROCHEMICALS

The Indian GDP stood at 71% for FY 17 slowed by the
4" consecutive quarter performance. GDP growth slowed to
6.1% in the fiscal fourth quarter from 7% in the third mirroring
the impact of demonetisation on some of the key sectors
including construction and financial services.

FY13 FY16 FY17
India GDP Growth

Sowrco; Ministy of Fnance, GOJ

Real GVA also slowed 105.6% In 04 as against 7.6%in Q1 of
the fiscal with moderation in private consumption and
investment demand.

|

However, the consumption led growth in India is likely to
gather momentum in the next fiscal. The fiscal consolidation
drive through expenditure rationalization with focus on
transparent administrative and financial governance shall
contribute o macro-aconomic stability significantly.

While G4 demand for petrochemicals slowed down
considarably, the demand tended to normalize towards the
end of the fiscal propelled by increase i current account
withdrawal limit restoring liquidity in the market. The country
clocked a moderated polymer growth figure of approw. 7%
mainly due to demonetization impact. Polyolefins deftas have
softenad this year due io strong naphtha prices and subdued
end product prices.

Going ahead, the industry is keen to look at positive outiook
for growth registering double digit polymear demand growth to
return. The same is likely to be facilitated by better
consumption in consumer durables, infrastructure and
automobiles while being facilitated by implementation of
GSTin a better business environmenl on the other hand.

CHEMICALS

BENZENE

In 2016, global nameplate capacity for benzena was
62,3 million metric tons, and production was 44.2 million
metric tons, resulting in an operating rate of 70.9%. Since
Benzene is produced primarily as a by-product, benzene
capacily is mostly feed-imited and the operating rate is less
important for benzene than lor other commodity chemicals.
Benzene is an excess commedity globally; Asia being largely
surplus is suppliers to the rest of world.

Market prices rose sharply at the end of the year as energy
costs pushed upwards, inventories needed replenishing and
planned outages were around the cormer. The year 2017 is
expected o be very different than 2015 or 2016.




Benzene Price S/MT
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BZ Prices : Average Benrene price rose by 8% in FY 16-17 vs FY 15-16

Sourpe: M5 Chomicals, Platis, Marke! information

In 2016, benzene production in the India is aimost 1.3 million
metric tons, an annual average growth rate (AAGR) of 8.9%
between 2011 and 2016. In 2016, BZ production improved
with the restart of the Haldia naphtha cracker and robust PX
production. Domestic damand in the region is astimated as
4,63,000 metric tons in 2016,

India is a major benzene exporter and will remain so over the
next few years, until derivative capacity is bullt. Between 2011
and 2016, the country's exports averaged approximately
6,50,000 metric tons per year, which amounted to more than
50% of its annual production,

BUTADIENE

Global butadiene markets have shifted substantially over the
last decade, in fact, the past five years have been quite a
rollercoaster ride. Markets have alternated between
extremely tight and very loose conditions within a fow
manths, more than once since 2008, The global recession
caused demand in the major consumption regions to drop
back to levels nol sean for many years.

In 2016, the largest butadiane consuming reglons ol the
waorld (North America, West Europe, and Northeast Asia)
accounted for over B0%: of total global demand. Their

combined share of butadiene demand is expected to remain
ahove T5% over next decade.

PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRY SCENARIO AT
A GLANCE FOR 2016-17

Indian polymer industry had witnessed good growth as
compared to global peers. HDPE had grown by B%, LLDPE
by 7% & PP by 3%. Overall growth in polyolefin was by 5%.

In global front, on the supply side. some capacity
rationalizations, primarily within Westlern Europe, were
implemented in recent years. The impact of these reductions
on the global supply/demand balance is minimal because of
a capacity wave that is adding over 29 million tons over the
next 5 years period. Moreover, the current low crude price
environment has langely moderated incentives to pursue
additional rationafizations for the next few years. Average
global operating rates, not surprisingly, remain at or below
85% for next couple of years. The arrival of large, additional
volumes in recent yaars from new Middle Eastern production
facilities is pressuring high cost producers, particularly in
Europe and Asia. The initial start-up difficulties ol several new
complexes in the Middle East have been successfully

Global

Capacity : 14.8 Mn MT
Production : 10,9 Mna MT
Demand 10,9 M MT 2000 —
Operaling Rate : 75%

Production : 0.35Mn MT 0
Demand 1 0.24 Mn MT 201415

2602
1572
1.1m 1,873
India 1000 |- 528286
. 500 = |
Capacity © 0.5MnMT |
L] | 1 | |

2015-18 O 1617 Q21617 Q31617 Q41617

Butadiens Price ST

Operating Rate @ 74%

BD Prices : Rose by 68% in FY 16-17 vs FY 15-16 due to sharp rise in Q4 16-17

Sowrce: M5 Charmicals, Plams, Marke! information
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resoived, and these highly competitive plants are currently
operaling at high rates. The competitive pressures will only
intensily when new capacity growth in North America
increases that region's net export position and China adds
significant capacity that reduces its import needs. Apart from
aloss of market share in the international market, Asian and
European producers also feel increasing pressure from
higher import volumes that are fiowing into their respective
regions. Therefore, volumes from traditional exporting
countries and reglons, including Japan, South Korea,
Taiwan, and Western Europe are in decline, which is tumming
some of these geographic enlilies into net imporiers or
expanding their historically small net import positions. In the
near lerm, improved margins stemming from low crude
prices will serve fo incentivize regional, naphtha-based
producers, including those in Asia and Europe, to operate al
higher capacities further increasing supply pressure. The
increasaed availability of advantaged ethane feedstock from
shale gas in North America has prompted almost all major
regional polyolefins producers to announce PE capacity
additions over the next five years. Braskem |desa, Dow
Chemical, Chevron Phillips, Equistar (LyondellBasall),
ExxonMobil, Formosa, INEOS Sasol, Nova, PTTGC, and
Shell have all announced plans to either expand existing
facilities or bulld new greenfield complexes. Current
estimates project the cumulative addition of ovar 12 million
metric tons of PE capacity in North America by 2028,
baginning o which was in 2016 with the Braskem Idesa
project in Mexico,

The indian petrochemical industry curmantly |s in the process
of transformation. After a delay of more than one year, two
new greenfield projects have recently started operations.
First, BCPL with a relatively small PE capacity of 220,000
matric tons started operations in Assam, an underdevalopad
region in Northeast India. Subsaquently, in the western state
of Gujarat, your Company has staried the single-lamest
cracker and derivatives facilities in India with a PE/PP
capacity of 1.4 million mefric tons. This entry of two new
producers will make the market more competitive and should
accelarate PE demand growth in diverse applications and

regions. GAIL (India) Limited (GAIL), an existing PE
producer, expanded capacity by 400.000 metric tons in early
2016. Rellance Industries Is building a cracker and
downstream LLDPE and LDPE units, with likely startup inthe
third gquarter of 2017. Tha new cracker will consume off-gas
from the adjoining refinery, thus positioning tha company's
production cash cost in the first guartile. Moreover, Reliance
is transforming its feedstock composition for crackers al
Hazira, Gandhar, and Nagothane by replacing naphthaLPG
with ethana imporied from the United Stales. These changes
will ensure consistent feedstock availability at more
competitive costs in the long term. Al the beginning of 2015,
there was a restructuring of the equily holiding and
management at Haldia PC and injection of funds by banks
and financial institutions. Management restructuring and the
significant Improvemant in the cost competitiveness of this
naphtha based cracker and derivatives producers owing to
low crude oll price has enabled the company to run their
plants at high operating rates and considerably improve their
profitability. Overall, the low crude oil price outlook should
banafit the Indian petrochemicals Industry toward becoming
more competitive and profitable.

In 2016-17, the polymer demand growth was: slower due to
the soff sentiments in the market and particularly after
demoneafization in November 2016, that affected the liquidity
especially for the small and medium scale processors.
Among the polymers, PP growth rate was the lowest at about
3% over 2015-16. The growth was contributed especially by
the sectors such as Automaotive, white goods and raffia,

During FY' 2017, PP prices were moderately down by aboul
2% mainly due to the slower demand growth.

PE on the other hand, had shown good growth, mainly driven
by packaging of food and non-food sectors. Domestic flaxible
packaging industry had witnessed 15% growth on Y-o-¥
basis. Rigid packaging sector had witnessed moderate
growth of 8%. Flexible and Rigid packaging put together had
contributed close to80°% of PE consumption.

Polyolefins Market:

16-17: HDPE - 2215 KT

IWECHTT 307 HIL W% NPT A
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18-17;: LLDPE - 1867 KT
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Product Warehouse (PWH) at Dahe| Plant

OUTLOOKFORFY 2017-18

*» There will be healthy consumption growth in domeslic PE and PP market, which |s backed up by down-stream capacity
addition. Order book for all major domestic machine manufacturers are full for next year.

* Major capacity additions by OPal, RIL, GAIL and BCPL lead to surplus material availability of PE in India. India will become net
PE exporter once all the plant stabillze and start oparating with their lull capacity.

» |tis expected that India's double digit polymer demand growth to return in 2017-18 and the year looks promising with positive
outiook for growth, Governmaent's special drives such as smart cities, swalch Bharat, makea in india campaigns are likaly to fual
growth in the automotive, construction and packaging sectors for PP Implementation of GST is expected {o enhance demand
growth for the end sactars,

¥ Flexible Packaging, Pipa, Blow moulding and Masterbalch seclors, remain tha growth drivers for PE and Raffia, Fiber &
Filament sectors, Compounding will ba the growth drivers for PP,

* OPal will be having competitive edge, being located near to consumption center and secured feedstock, once operations
slabilize.

OPaL Plant's view at Dahej
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Symposium on Indusiry Meel at OPal Petrochemical Complex Dahej - Siting on the dias from Left : Shri Avinash Joshi,
Shri Mansukh L. Mandavia, Shri Vijay Rupani, Shri Narendra Modi, Shri Nitin Gadkari, Shri K. D. Tripathi & Shri J. N. Singh

et

—
_

#

Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi dedicated to the Nation OPaL Petrochemical Complex on 7" March, 2017 and
addressing Industry Meet at Dahe/

10 |




OPalL Plant’s view al Dahej

QPal Plam’s view at Dahoj
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4.SOURCESANDAPPLICATION OF FUNDS

As on 317 March, 2017, Capital expenditure of ¥ 2,88,913.08 million and Operating expenditure of T 6,813.91 has been incurmed on
cashbasis, and OPal holds cash/cash equivalent of T 7148 milllon. The sources and application of funds, as on 31" March, 2017 are

as balow:;
Particulars Amount (T in Million)

Sources :
Equity Share Capital {Including Share Warrant ¥18,739.50 miilion) 38,958.80
Rupee Long Term Loan 1.23579.75
Extarnal Commercial Borrowing (USD 220 milllion) 13.348.60
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 56,022.85
Working Capital Loan 523752
Short Term Loans 58.649.96

Total Sources of Funds 2,95.758.48
Application of Funds :
Capita!l expendsture till 31" March, 2017 2,88,913.09
Operating expenditure till 31" March, 2017 6.813.0
Balance Cash and Bank Balance 7148

ONGC, GSPC and GAIL have contributed T 9,973.56 million, T 230.04 million and T 9,949.45 million respectively, as Equity Share
Capital. Additionally, OPalL has received ¥ 18,739.50 million from ONGC up to 31" March, 2016 towards “warrant” under Rights Issue

in various tranches.

5.PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has nol accepted any deposit from the public
during the year under review.

6. DIVIDEND

In the absence of profits during the financial year 2018-17,
your Directors do not recommend any dividend.

7. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

In view of absence of profits during the financial year 2018-17,
your Directors are unable to transler any amount to the
General Reserve Account.

8. SHARE CAPITAL

There |s no change in share capital of the Company during
financial year 2016-17.

9.AUDITAND AUDITORS' REPORT

I. Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditors of your Company have been
appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
{CAG). M/s Shah, Mahta and Bakshi, Chartered Accountants
{Registration No. 103824W) were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors lor the Financial Year 2018-17 The

12|

Statutory Auditors have been paid a remuneration of ¥ 1.25
million (pravious year ¥ (.88 million) towards audit fee
(including Limited Review). The above fees are exclusive of
applicable taxes and reimbursement of reasonable travelling
and out of pockat expanses actually incurred,

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the financial
statements of the Company and the Comments of
Comptrolier & Auditor General of India (CAG) lorms part ol
the Annual Report. The obsarvations made in the Auditors'
Report ame sell-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further comment,

The Comments of Comptroller & Auditor Genaral of India
(CAG) and the reply of the management thereto form part of
this report and are attachad as Annexure-l.

Il. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointimeni and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnal) Rules, 2014, the
Board of Diractors has appointed M/s Kumar Maresh Sinha &
Associales a firm of Company Secretaries in praclice o
undertake the Secretarial Audit of your Company for the
financial year 2016-17 M/s Kumar MNarash Sinha &
Associates, Company Secretaries have submitted the
Secretarial Audil Report dated 1" July, 2017 The report in
Form MRB-3 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-ll
to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer.
However, observations made by Secretarial Auditor have
been noled by the Board,



10.HUMAN RESOURCE (HR)

Employees are the prime mowvers and our most valuable
assel. |n OPaL we are commitied to creating an open and
transparent organisation with focus on overall employee
development and fostering an environment that enables
them to daliver suparior padformanca.

In the previous financial year, our main focus was on
accelerating our talent acguisition efforts and these hawe
resulted in augmenting close to 225 nos. of critical talent 1o
the already existing highly skilled OPal's workforca, As on
30" June. 2017 the total numbers of employees working on
the company rolis are 774 nos. and on deputation basis
11 nos. In addition, substantial initiatives on nurturing cordial
ralations with locals wara undertaken.

Your Company's main focus in HR will be 1o create and
sustain the culture of integrity, belongingness, teamwork,
accountability and innovation. Apart from this, it will be
OPal's constant endeavour 1o continuously upgrade and
innovate HR practices.

QOPal believes in nurturing a supportive and productive
working environment that fosters team based results and
recognizes individual performance. It lays a lot of emphasis in
developing and sustaining the right culture for open
communication, continuous Innovation and pedormance
centric growth.

11.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review no employea was in receipt of
remuneration exceeding the limits set oul under
Section 1897(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 mead with
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

12.AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Section 177 (8), the details regarding
Audit Committee are provided in Corporate Governance
report. Thare has been no instance where recommendations
of the Audit Committes have not been accepted by tha Board.

13.0THER MATERIAL CHANGES

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (1) and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, save as aforesaid in this report,
no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company Le., 31" March, 2017 and
the date of this report.

14. COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES (CCDs)

In order o meet Equity requirement, the Company had
tied-up funds of T 1671 crore from Investors Birla Sun Lite
Mutual Funds (through their 8 mutual fund schemes) and
Kotak Mahindra Bank through private placement ol
Debenturas (Compulsorily convertible into Equity Capital of
QOPaL).

Accordingly, Company allotted 200 nos. of CCDs to Kotak
Mahindra Bank and 1471 nos. of CCDs o Birla Sun Life
Mutual Funds (through their 8 mutual fund schemes) on
20" May, 2017 Thereaher, 1671 nos. of CCDs having lace
value of rupees one crore has been credited fo Demat
account of abovementioned investors on 26" May, 2017,

15.DIRECTORS

Shri M. Ravindran (Nominee GAIL) was appointed as
Director with effect from 7" June, 2013 and he ceased 1o be
Director with effect from 18" January, 2017 The Board of
Directors places on record their deep appreciation for the
valuable advice and guidance provided by him during his
tenure as Diractor.

Shn Sanjib Datta {Nominee GAIL) was appointed as an
Additional Director pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of
the Companias Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 18" January, 2017,

Ms. Suman Singh Gaur was appoinied as a Woman Director
in the Board of OPal with effect from 9" September, 2015 and
she ceased to be Director from the Board of OPal due 1o
superannuation with effect from 31" January, 2017 The
Board of Directors places on record their deep appreciation
tor complate involvermnent during her lenure as Director.

During the year under review, on the recommendations of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and in
accordance with provisions of Section 161 of the Companles
Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company,
Shr Avinash Joshi, |AS was appoinied as an Additional
Director on the Board of OPal with effect from
1" February, 2017 Further Shri Avinash Joshi has been
appointed as Managing Director of the Company from
1" February, 2017 to 22™ Febtuary, 2019 with the approval of
members n 7' Extra-Ordinary General meeting held on
14" March, 2017,

Shri Avinash Joshi is a member of the Indian Administrative
Sefvice, 1994 batch from the Assam-Meghalaya cadre. Prior
to joining OPal., Shri Avinash Joshi was in-charge of policy
matters relating o petrochemicals, plastics, synthetic fibre,
elastomers, ele. in the Departmen! ol Chemicals &
Petrochemicals under the Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers.

11" annual redort 2016817 | 13
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With his rich and diversified experience in Administration
along with in-depth understanding of petrochemicals
environment, we expect that your company will achieve its
vision of becoming the World Class Petrochemical Company.

There was no change in the composition of the Board during
the financial year 2016-17, other than appointment of
Shri Sanjib Datta, Shri Avinash Joshi and cessation of
Shri M. Ravindran and Ms. Suman Singh Gaur.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and
the Articles ol Association of the Company,
Shri T.K. Sengupta and Shn M.B. Lal. Directors are liable to
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
baing eligible, has offered themselves for re-appointment.

MNone of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed
as Directors in term of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

16.KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

In accordance with the provisions ol Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies [Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the following persons act as Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) of the Company -

Shri K. Satyanarayana was intially appointed as Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company with effect from
7" May, 2014. As per Companies Act, 2013, he has been
appointed as Chiel Executive Officer (CEO) as part of KMP
with effect from 26" July, 2014 and he ceased to be Chiel
Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Company with effect from
30" April, 2017 The Board ol Directors place on record that
under his |leadership the plant has been successfully
commissionad.

Shri Avinash Joshi. IAS appointed as Manaqging Director of
the Company with effect from 1% February, 2017 After
cessation of Shri K. Satyanarayana, as Key Managerial
Parsonnel, Shri Avinash Joshi, Manaaing Direclor has been
appointed as part of Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company with effect from 1% May, 2017,

Shri Subodh Prasad Pankaj was initlally appoinied as
Company Secratary (CS) with effect from 11" January, 2010
and as per Companies Act, 2013, he has been appointed as
Company Secretary as part of KMP with effect from
26" July, 2014,

Shri Trinath Behera has been appointed as Chiel Finance
Officer (CFO) as part of KMP with effect from 1 July, 2015,

17.INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

I. Appointment of Independent Directors

Pursuant to provisions of Section 149, Saction 150,
Section 152 mead with Schedule IV of the Companies

Ml

Aol, 2013, Shareholders in ils 6" Exira Ordinary General
Meeting held on 30" January, 2017 appointed
Shri M, M. Chitale and Shri 5. Balachandran as Independent
Directors of the Company for a term of five consacutive years
commancing from 1° April, 2014 to 31" March, 2018,

Il. Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration from
each Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of
indepandence laid down in Saction 149(6) of tha Companies
Act, 2013.

Ill. Independent Directors Meeting

During the year under review, an annual Independent
Directors meating In accordance with the provisions of
Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 was convenad on 29" September, 2016, whearein all
Independent Directors were presenl, Such meeting was
conducted to enable independent Directors to discuss matter
pertaining to the Company's affairs.,

18.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance s
based on highest standards of professionalism, honesty,
integrity, transparency and ethical behaviour. OPaL is one of
the largest! integrated patrochemical complex in South Asia
Through the Governance mechanism in the Company, the
Board alongwith its Committees undertakes its fiduciary
responsibilities 1o all i1s stakeholders by ensuring
transparency, fair play and Independence in its decision
making.

The Board works harmoniously for the long-term benefit of
the Company and all its stakeholders. Details of the
composition of the Board and its Committees, Meetings held,
attendance ol the Directors al such Meetings and othar
relevant details are provided in Corporate Governance
Report.

A separate report on Corporate Governance is attached as
Annexure-|il.

19.EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual RBeturn in Form MGT-9 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Aule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as an
Annexure-V 1o this Report.



20.RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions thal were anlered into during
tha financial year were on arm's length basis and were in the
ordinary course of the business. The particulars of Contracts
or Arrangements made with related parties made pursuant fo
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder is furnished in the prescribed format AOC-2
forms part of the report as Annexure-V.

21.RISK MANAGEMENT

To have a betier assessment of the business and operational
risks and to monitor risk mitigation effectiveness based on
risk evaluation, the concept of Risk Management was
introduced and therefore Risk Management Commiltee was
constituted,

The Company analyzes a wide range of possible risk factors
to ensure the sustainabllity and reliability of our corporate
activities. In order to achieve key objectives, Company
endeavor to preserve both tangible and intangible company
assets and make afforts 1o minimize damage using the most
suitable methods.

Risk Management demonstrate responsible conduct, take
quick and appropriate action, and strive to restore operations
when risks do eventuate In order to eam the trust of
customers, shareholders and all other stakeholders.,

22.VIGIL MECHANISM

CPaL has an internal whistleblowing systam flor
director{s)/employee(s) to safeguard against victimization.
This system acts to help detect potential problems in
advance and enable prompt resolution. The “Whistia Blower
Policy of the Company” is available on Company’s websile
{wwwi.opalindia.in).

During the Financial Year 20168-17, no case of Whistle Blower
has been reported in the Company,

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR)

Your company is lully angaged In ensuring equitable and
sustainable growth of society in and around the area of its
operations by complying with government directives to
discharge its social responsibility as a corporate. Further
your Company is maintaining cordial relations with the
nearby villages around its Plant located at Dahej SEZ by
doing CSR acfivities,

The ©SR Policy Is available on Company's website
(www.opalindia.in).

During the year your Company made contribution in the
following activities as per details given below:

- Expenditure on uplitment of education - ¥ 60,000,
24. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

As per the “Nomination and Remuneration Policy™ of OPal.
all matters related to the Appointment, Remuneration and
other lacilities of Directors, KMF, Vice President & above and
Functional Heads are deliberated In the Nomination &
Remuneration Commitiee and recommended to the Board
for approval.

25.BOARD EVALUATION

Nomination & Remuneration Committee constituted under
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 has bean made
responsible for carrying out evaluation of every direclor's
perormance. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8)
read with Schedule |V of the Companiles Act, 2013, and the
provisions of the Act, Board evaluation involving evaluation of
the Board of Directors, its Committees and individual
Directors, including the role of the Board Chairman, was
carried out during the year.

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review
the Board evaluation framework, To improve the
effectiveness of the Board and iis Commitiees, as well as that
ol each Individual director, a formal Board review is
undertaken on an annual basis by the Independent Directors
in thelr meeting held on 28" Seplember, 2016,

26. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The Company has one Managing Director during the
Financial Year 2016-17. Remuneration paid to the Managing
Director is within the limits prescribed under the Schedule V
of the Companies Act. 2013. All the Directors in the Company
are Non-executive Direclors axcept the Managing Director.
During the financial year 2016-17 there were two
Independent Directors in the Company. The Independent
Directors are paid sitting fees of T15,000/- per maating for
attending mestings of the Board and other Commitiee of
Board,

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT ATWORKPLACE

The following is a summary ol Sexual harassment
complaints received and disposed off during the financial
year 2016-17

Number of complaints received : Mi
MNumber of complaints disposed off Nil
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28.DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Directors of the Company to the best of their knowledge and
ability hereby state and confirm that:

a) in the preparation ol the annual accounis for the year
ended March 31, 2017 the applicable accounting
standards have been lollowed and there are no material
departures from the same;

b) they have salected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as al
March 31, 2017 and of the profit and loss of the Company
for the year anded on that date

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other imegularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going
concerm' basis;

g) they have devised proper sysiems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems are adequate and operating effactively.

29. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company does not have any Subsidiaries and Joint
Vienlure companies as on 31" March, 2017 However, OPal is
an associate company of ONGC and GAIL under
Saction 2 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

30. HOLDING COMPANY
Your Company is not a subsidiary of any Company.

31. ENERGY CONSERVATION,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
ANDOUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange eamnings and outgo
pursuant 1o Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013
read along with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, is annaxed herewith as Annesxure -V,

$ﬂ|

32. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT
(HSE)

Your Company's HSE policy is to achieve operational
excellence with a robust and integrated HSE management
system focused on improving harmony with the anvironmant
through sustainable development aligning to regulatory
framework. Safety and Health ol its people is ol paramount
importance for your company and these afttributes are
embedded in the core organization values of your company.
Concept of Process Safety Management has been imbibed
at the design [sell. Mechanism like pre-start up safety
reviews, perindical audits, inspections are adopled to ansure
the best in class HSE culture at your organization.
Participation across verticals including contractors are
encouraged to adopt safe working culture and behavior
conducive for effective implementation of the HSE paolicy.
Management of operational risks and compliances ol
statutory requirements are given foremost importance in
overall business managament,

OPal is committed to achieve leadership rode in Health,
Safety and Environment management through continual
improvement by innovative and sustainable endeavors with
all levels of resources support.

OPal believes that protection ol environment and acology,
the safely and occupational health of employeas and stake
holders will always be core value along with the
organizational mission and vision.

33. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN,
INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES
GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED
UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review company has not made any
loan, investment and guaranias,



34. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL (IFC)

OPaL has aligned its current systam of internal financial contral with the requiremant ol Companies Act, 2013, OPal’s internal
controls are commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations. OPal has appointed M/s KK, Soni & Co. Chartered
Accountants as internal auditor to oversee and carry out Internal audit of its activities. The audit is based on an internal audit plan,
which is reviewed from timae to tima in consultation with the statutory auditors and the audit committea. The audit committes reviews
the reports submitted by the management and audil reporls submitted by internal auditors and statutory auditors. Suggestions for
improvement are considered and the audll committea follows up on corrective action. The audit committea also meets OPal's
statutory auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adeguacy of internal control systems and keeps the Board of Directors
Informed of its major obserations.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, the
work performed by the internal, statutory, and secretarial auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting by the stalutory auditors, and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board
committees, including the audit committea, the board |s of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate
and effective during Financial Year 2016-17

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks io Rupee Loan Lenders, ECB Lenders, CCDs Investors, Government ol Gujarat,
Government agencias, Dahe| SEZ, ONGC, GAIL and GSPC for thelr cooperation and conlinuous support extended to your
Companies activities during the year under review. Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the shamsholders and debenture holders
for their support and confidence reposed in your Company and also wish 1o place on record their appreciation for the all round
contribution made by employees at all levels,

on behalf of the Board of Directors
for ONGC Petro additions Limited

({Dinesh K. Sarraf)
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5" July, 2017
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Annexure-|

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(B)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ONGC PETRO ADDITIONS

LIMITED FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2017 AND MANAGEMENT REPLY THERETO :

No.

Comments

Management Reply

1

Balance Sheet
Equity and Liabilities : Liabilities : Current Liabilities
{ii) Trade Payable- Rs. 4,184.27 Million

The above does not include following payments due o
Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC) on
account of purchase of Maphtha, Ethane, Propane &
Butane by ONGC Petro additions Limited (OPaL}).

i. As per agreement dated 22.04 2016 entered into with
ONGC for supply of Naphtha through Marine route, the
company had agreed that the price of Maphtha shall be
*Mean of Platts Arab Gull* (MOPAG) plus a premium of
1.1 parcent of MOPAG. Further under clause 7 & B of
the Agreement, the company was also required to pay
axport related expenses and |loading charges to
OMNGC on purchase of Naphtha. The company has not
paid the amount of agreed premium (1.1 percent) of Rs.
B5.79 million as well as an amount of Rs. 289.20
miliion, towards export related expenses and loading
charges for the FY 2016-17 However, the amount has
not been recognisaed as liability in the Accounts of the
Company. The company instead has disclosed the
outstanding payment of agreed premium (1.1 percant)
of Rs. 85.79 milion under nole 40.1 as Contingant
liability.

i. The Naphtha from ONGC's Hazira plant was o be

supplied through a dedicated Hazira Dahej Naphtha
Pipeling( HDNPL). For this OPal had entered into a
Naphtha Service agreement with ONGC., In absence
of HOMPL pipeline for supply of naphtha, OPal made
alternate arrangement (Marine route) for receiving
naphtha, An Agreement "For supply of Naphtha
through Marine Route" was forwarded by ONGC on
22" April, 2016 and required it to be mandatorily
signed before dispatch of naphtha. Since the ship was
already engaged by OPaL at RIL SPM on
23" April, 2016, it was signed on urgency basis pending
review andapproval of OPal Board,

After scrutiny of the aforesaid Agreement, deviations
were noled with respect to already signed Naphtha
Product Sale Agreement (PSA) dated 23.08.2013.
Under this new agreament Price of Naphtha is MOPAG
however, a premium of 1.1% has been added and
GMB, SPM charges for bringing naphtha through
marine route have to be borne by OPaL.

Discussions ware held with ONGC during review of
draft agreement. These daviations ware
communicated 1o ONGC vide letter dated 23.04.2016,
by OPaL with a request to amend the agreament.

OPal argued that in earfier PSA dated 23.08.2013
ONGC was required lo deliver Naphtha at door step of
OPalL through pipeline as per the Maphtha Service
Agreement. Secondly, in case of export related
expenses, whenever ONGC exports MNaphtha o its
overseas customers, GMB charges, SPM charges are
not charged to its customers. The price mechanism for
supply of Naphtha should be in parity for supply to SEZ
unit as supply to SEZ unit is treated as export. OPal
being SEZ unit, export related expenses should be
borne by ONGC.

The issue was written to ONGC for favourable
consideration, and ONGC has conveyed that the
matter shall be examined by a senior level
committee of ONGC and OPaL. Para 10 of Ind AS 37
which defines provision, contingent liability as follows:

TB|




Commaents

Management Reply

“Provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount
and liability is a present obligation of the entity arising
from the past evenls, the setlement of which is
expectad 1o resull in an outflow from the entity of
resources embodying economic benefit.’

A Contingent liability is -

(a) A possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the entity; or

{b) Present cbligation that arises from past events
but is not recognised because;

{i) itis not probable that an outfiow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be
required io settle the obligation; or

(iiy the amount ol the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability”

In view of the above, the premium charged by the ONGC
on Naphtha is considered as possible obligation and not
a present obligation. Accordingly, the said premium is
disclosed as a contingent liability in financial statements.

So far as export related expenses i.e. GMB & SPM
charges are concemed, the company doesn't envisage
the sald expenses even as a possible obligation.
Accordingly, the company has not disclosed the same as
acontingent liability in the financial statement.

In this respect, para 86 of Ind AS 37 aiso corroborates,
which reads as follows:

“Unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is
remote, an enlity shall disclose for each class of
contingent liability at the and of the reporting period a
brief description of the nature of the contingent lability."

Hence, the company does nol envisage any oulflow in
this regard.
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Comments

Management Reply

ii. The Company was also required to pay price of Ethane
as per the formula, agreed under Product Sale
Agreement (PSA) entered into between ONGC and
OPal on 23.08.2013 for purchase of Ethane. However
while working out the payment, OPaL did not consider
an element of the formula relating to average MOPAG
for Maphtha. This has resulted in short payment of
amount of Rs. 154.94 million for FY 2016-17, howevear,
the same has not been recognised as kabilfity in the
account of the Company, The Company instead has
disclosed the above amount under note 40.1 as
Contingent liability.

iii. The Company has also not recognised the liablity for
payment of Interest of As. 73.49 millions on overdue
paymants charged by ONGC on account of purchase
of Naphtha, Ethane, Propane & Butane by OPal vide
Product Sale Agreement (PSAs) dated 23.08.2013,

Nol recognising the above contractual payments to
ONGC as current liability has resulted in
understatement Current Liability and Loss for the year
by Rs. 603.42 Million,

H. For supply of Ethane (C2) OPal has entered into PSA
with ONGC. Under the said PSA price mechanism G2
include some amount of Naphtha In it As stated in
above point, active discussions are going on to make
necessary amendmenis in Naphiha between OPal
and ONGC. In line with above issue and pending
resolution of the same, OPal management has taken
& dacision 1o hold ol payment ol premium component
included in price of C2. The said premium amount on
Ethane (C2) has been considered as possible
obligation.

Para 10 of Ind AS 37 which defines provision,
contingent liability as follows.

“Provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount
and llability is a present obligation of the entity
arlsing from the past events, the settlemant of which
is expected to result in an cutfiow from the entity of
resources embodying economic benealit.”

"A Contingent |labillty |s -

a. A possible obligation that arises from pasi
events and whose existence will be confirmed
anly by the cccurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncartain future evants not wholly
within the control of the entity; or

b. Present obligation that arises from past events
butis not recognised because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benalits
will be required to sefile the cbligation; or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.”

Accordingly, short payment on Ethane (G2) has been
disclosed as a contingent liability in financial statements.

iii. As per above as the major charges |.e. Premium and
export related charges to be waived and Payment
cycla along with billing period will be revised, tha
management is confident that interest also would be
walved.

Accordingly, the company doesn't envisage the
payment of Interest even as a possible obligation.
Hence, the has not disclosed the same as a
contingent liability in the financial statement.

In this respect, para B6 of Ind AS 37 also comoborales,
which reads as follows;

L




Management Reply

“Unless tha possibility of any outflow in settlemant is
remote, an entity shall disclose for each class of
contingent liability at the and of the reporting period a
brief description of the nature of the contingent liability."

The company does not envisage any outflow in this
regard.

Balance Sheet
Equity and Liabilities : Liabilities : Current Liabilities
{b) Provisions-Rs.2.83 Million

The above does not include As. 104,96 Milllon (USS$ 1.6
Million, exchange rate - Rs. B5.6 for one USS) being
invoica raised by M/s Samsung Engineering Co. Lid.
(SECL) in Decembear 2016 towards reimbursement of
extension cost of Licensure Guarantee Obligation for
facilitating the successlul Performance Guarantee Test
Run (PGTR) of High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) unit,
as recommeanded by the Project Review Commitiee in its
25" Meeting dated 20.03.2017. The HDPE unit has been
capitalized on 31.01.2017, however the PGTR has not
bean conducted as on 31.03.2017 Since OFal has
agreed to reimburse the cost to SECL for cammying out
PGTR which is a conlractual cbligation, the same should
have been provided as Liability in the Financial
statements and charged to Other Expenses (Note-32).
MNon provision of the above liability has resulted in
understatement of the Current Liability. Other Expenses
as wall as Loss lor the year by Rs. 104.96 Million.

Asperpara 18 Ind AS 37

*Financial stalements deal with the financial position
of an entity at the end of its reporting period and not
its possible position in the future. Therefore, no
provision is recognised for costs that need to be
incurred to operate in the future. The only liabilities
recognised in an entity's balance sheet are those that
exist at the end of the reporting period.”

Contract for Dedicated High Density Poly Ethylena plant
was awarded to Samsung Engineering Company Limited
(SECL), Korea on 28" June, 2011. The said contract does
not conlain any payment lowards extension cost ol
Licensure Guaraniee Obligation lor facilitating the
successful Performance Guarantee Test Run (PGTR) of
HDPE unil. Because PGTR is nol initiated within 60
months from 28.04.2011 50 SECL has claimed additional
cost of USD 1.6 million. This amount s over and above
contract value which requires approval from Competent
Authority.

As per Para 10 of Ind AS 37

‘A liability is a present obligation of the entity arising
from past events. the settiement of which is expected
to result in an outfiow from the entity of resources
embodying economic benefits.”

OFPalL Board in 69" Board Meeting held on
22" May, 2017 approved reimbursement of extension
cost of Licensure Guarantee Obligation for facilitating the
successiul Performance Guarantea Tast Run (PGTR) of
HDPE unit. PGTA of HDPE unit was pending as on
31" March, 2017 therefors, no liability arlses on OPal
against this invoice,

Hence, no provision in books of account was made for
this liability.
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Annexure-ll

KUMAR MARESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES Flat No. 121, Vinayak Apariments
Company Secretaries Plot No. C-58/18, Secior-62,
MOIDA-201307 (L.P)

Tel. : 1120-4117114
Mobile ; 9868282032, 9810184269
E-mail : kumarnareshsinha @gmail. com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31" MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant lo section 204(1) of the Companies Acl, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Mamagerial Personnel) Rules, 20714]

To,

The Members,

ONGC Petro additions Limited,

1" Floor, Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi,
Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011,
Gujarat, India.

We have conductad the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adheranca to good
corporate practices by ONGC Petro additions Limited (hereinafter called the Company) having its registered office at 1 Floor,
Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi, Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011, Gujarat, India. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliancas and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial yaar ended on 31° March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions |isted hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place fo the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns liled and other records maintained by ONGC Petro
additions Limited for the financial year ended on 31° March, 2017 according to the provisions of;

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder,;
(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,

(i) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved as such by the Central
Gavernment of India.

{iv) Foreign Exchange Managemant Acl, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 1o the exten! of Foraign Diract
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bormowings;

(v} Other applicable laws including Labour laws like Factories Act, Payment of Gratuity Act etc. for the year ended on
31" March, 2017 for the purpose required in it

During the period under review and as per explanations and clarifications given to us and representations made by the
Managemant, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Aules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above subject to our observation as staled balow:

1. Woman Director ceased to be a director due to superannuation w.e.f 31" January, 2017 and as informed by OPalL
management the appointment of suitable woman director is In process.

However, during the period under review, provisions of the following regulations were not applicable to the Company. Hence,
comments are not reguired 1o be made inrespect of these clauses;
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i. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder is not applicable as the securities
of Company are not listed with any of the Stock Exchanges.

i. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act):-

{a) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Hegulations, 2011;
(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(8) The Sacurities and Exchanga Board of India (|ssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

{f)y The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars lo an Issue and Share Transter Agents) Regulations, 1293
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2008; and
{h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
ii. DPE Guidelines.
W further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company |5 duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors, The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review weare
carried out In compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and Committes Meelings, agenda and detalled noles on agenda were
sant in advance, and a system axists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items befones the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Decision at the Board meeting were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company lo monltor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Wi further report that the compliance by the company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance
of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by
stalutory financial audit by other designated professional.

We further report that during the audit period, the company has provided details of specific event/actions having a major bearing on
the company's allairs in pursuance of the above relerred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, ele, referred to above,

For Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates
Company Secretgries

Ma mar H‘IG

for
Membership No. :FCS1807
Caortificate of Practice No. ; 14984

Date: M-07-2017
Place: Noida

Mote: This repori Is to be read with our letter of even date which Is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report.
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KUMAR MARESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES Flat No. 121, Vinayak Apartments
Company Secretaries Plot No. C-58/19, Sector-62,
NOIDA-201307 (U.P)

Tel. : M20-4117114

Mobile ; 9868282032, 9810184268

E-mail : kumarnareshsinha @ gmail.com

Annexure-A

To,

The Members,

ONGC Pelro additions Limited,

1" Floor, Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi,
Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011,
Gujarat, india.

Qur Report of even date is to be read with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company, Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasenable assurance about the correctness
ol the contents ol the secretar|al records. The verification was done on the last basls to ensure thal correct lacts are reflected in
sacretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

3. We have not verified the comectness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events elc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or eflfectiveness
with which the management has conducted the atairs of the Company.

For Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates
Company Secratdri

N Kwnarslég

Proprietor

MembershipNo. : FCS1807
Ceartificate of Practice No. : 14984

Date: 01-07-2017
Place: Moida
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Annexure-lll
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

There are four pillars of Corporate Governance namely first accountability, second fairness, thind transparency and fourth
independence and your Company believe in it.

Our Corporate governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurale information regarding our
financials and performance, as well as disclosures related 1o the leadership and governance of the Company, Wae believe thal an
active, well-informed and independent board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of corporate governance.

1. Board of Directors

The Company is managed by iis Board of Directors, which formulates strategies. policies and reviews. The Company has an
appropriate mix of Executive, Non-executive and Independent Directors to maintain its independence, and separate its functions of
govermance and managament,

The Board alongwith its Committees provide leadership and guidance to the Company's management. as also director, supervise
and control the performance of the Company. The Board currently comprises of nine Directors out of one Managing Director, etght
Non-executive Directors including two Independent Directors. The Company has a Non-executive Chalrman. All directors have
made necessary disclosures regarding their direciorships as required under Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the
Committea positions held by them in other Companies.

The following are the members of the Board as on 31" March, 2017:

Sl. No. Name of Directors Designation Category

1 Shiri Dinesh K. Sarraf Chairman MNon-Exacutive

2 Shiri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Executive

3 Shri TK. Sengupta Director Non-Executive

i Shri A K. Srinivasan Director Non-Executive

5 Shri MM, Chitale Director Independent & Non-Executive
6 Shri S, Balachandran Director Independant & Non-Executive
7 Shri M, B. Lal Director Non-Executive

8 Shri PK. Gupta Director Non-Executive

9 Shri Sanjib Datta Director Non-Execulive

2. Board/Committees Meetings and Procedures

(I} The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance shareholder value through strategic direction to the Company. The Board
exercise its duties with care, skill and diligence and exercises independent judgement. it also directs and axarcise appropriate
control to ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholders' aspirations and socielal expectations.

{ii} Itmay not be possible for every Directorember fo be physically present at all the meetings. Hence, Company provides video
conferring facilities to attend the maetings of Board/Committea to it's mambears.

(iii) The Board has unrestricted access to all Company-relaled information. At Board/Committes meetings Functional Head and/or
representatives who can provide additional insight into the items being discussed are invited. Information is provided to the
Board/Commitiea members for their review, inputs and approval as and when required.

(v} Generally matters are initially presented to the Committees of the Board and later, with the recommendation of the Commitlees,
to the Board for its approval. Inputs and feedback of Board members are taken and considered while preparing the agenda and
documents for the Board Meeting.

(v} None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. The maximum tenure of Independeant
Direclors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013,

{vi) The Board notes quarterly compliance report of all laws applicable 1o the Company.
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3.Board Meetings

Seven Board meetings were held during the financial year 2016-17 and the maximum time gap between two consecutive meetings
did not exceed one hundred and twenty (120) days. The dates of the Board meetings and other details are as follows:

S1. No.| No.of Meetings | Date of Meetings Place of Meetings
. Board Room of ONGC, 6" Floor, Jeevan Bharti Building, Tower-1l, 124,
1 62 18-05-2016 Indira Chowk, New Delhi-110001
Board Room of ONGC, 8" Floor, Jeevan Bhartl Building, Towerll, 124,
2 63" 25-07-2016 indira Chowk, New Delhi-110001
" Board Room of ONGC, 6" Floor, Jesvan Bharti Building, Tower-ll, 124,
3 s SFNEY indira Chowk, New Delhi-110001
. Board Room of ONGC, 5" Floor, Pandit Deandayal Upadhyaya Urja
4 65 23-12-2016 Bhawan, 5, Neison Mandela Marg, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi-110070
e Board Room of ONGC. 5" Floor, Pandit Deendayal Upadhyaya Urja
5 66 28-01-2017 Bhawan, 5, Nelson Mandela Marg, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi-110070
Board Room of ONGC, 5" Floor, Pandit Deendayal Upadhyaya Urja
6 67" 23-02-2017 Bhawan, 5, Nelson Mandela Marg, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi-110070
Board Room of ONGC, 5" Floor, Pandit Deendayal Upadhyaya Urja
7 68" 29-03-2017 Bhawan, 5, Nelson Mandela Marg, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi-110070

The necessary quorumwas present for all the meetings.

The details of Director's attendance in the Board Mestings during 17 April, 2016 to 317 March, 2017 are as follows:

SI. No. Name of Directors Executive/ Non-Executive/ Independent H'::t-lr;ﬂgl Il::'u:g:

Attended
i Shri Dinesh K. Sarral (DIN:00147870) Chalrman & Non-Executive Director T B
2 | ShriAvinash Joshi ' (DIN: 06723083) Managing Director 2 2
3 Shri T.K. Sengupta (DIN: 0BBO287T) Non-Exacutive Director 7 T
4 Shri A.K. Srinivasan (DIN: 07 168305) Non-Exscutive Director 7 6
5 Shri M, Ravindran * (DIN: 02309551) Non-Executive Director 4 2
6 | Shri M.M. Chitale (DIN: 00101004) Independent & Non-Executive Directar 7 5
7 Shri S, Balachandran (DIN: 01962996) Independant & Non-Executive Director 7 7
8 Shri M.B. Lal (DIN: 00129965) Non-Executive Director 7 B
g Shri PK. Gupta (DIN: 01237708) Non-Executive Director 7 5
10 Ms. Suman Singh Gaur * (DIN: 07284641) Non-Executive Director 5 4
n Shri Sanjib Datta * (DIN: 0T008785) MNon-Executive Director 3 2

1 Shri Avinash Joshi was appointed as 8 Managing Direcior with effect from 17 Februarg, 2017
2. Shn M. Ravindran ceasead o be Direcior with effect from 18" January, 20017

3. Mz, Suman Singh Gaur ceased (o be Direcior with effect from 317 Janwary, 2077

4. Shri Sanjfib Dafta was appointed as a Director with effect from 18 January, 2017
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4. Board Committees

The Board constitutes ils need based Committees from time to time and as per Statutory requirement and al the time of their
constitution fixes the term of reference for each such Committee. However, some of the Committees have specific assignmant
delegated o them whereas the others being standing Commillees are permanent in nature and have to meet from time to time. The
tenure of the former types of Committees expire after accomplishment of specific objective set for them whereas the tenure for
Standing Committees is unlimited although the constitution and mandate of such Standing Commitiees keep changing based on the
neads for such change.

Presantly, the Board has eleven Commitiees and in each Committes Independent Director is one of the members. Normally, ail
Committees meet regutarly on need basis during the year. The recommendations of the Committees are submitted to the enfire
Board lor approval. During the year, recommendations of the Commillees were either approved or further direction s given.

The Board or its Committees also take decision by circular resolutions incase of business exigency or urgency.

Shri Subodh Prasad Pankaj, Company Secretary of the Company acts as a coordinator to.all the following Committees of the Board.
(i) Audit Committee

Audit Committaa halps the Board lo monitor tha Managemant's financial reporting process and ansure that the disclosures ane nol
only accurate and timefy, but follow the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. All possible
measures are taken by the Committee to ensure the objectivity and independence of the auditor,

As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, Audit Committee shall have power in respect of the following matters namely (i) to
investigate any activily within its terms of reference; (ii) to seek information from any amployee; (i) to obtain outside legal or other
professional advice, (iv) to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if itconsiders necessary.

Composition of the Commitiee with efiect from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl. No. | Members of the Commitiee Executive/Non-Executive/independent Position in the Commitiee
1 Shri S. Balachandran Independant & Non-Executive Director Chairman
2 Shri AK. Srinivasan Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shri MM, Chitale Indapendent & Mon-Executive Director Membar

Audit Committee met three times during the financial year 2016-17. These meetings were held on 17" May, 2018, 3" November, 2016
and 12" January, 2017 All the above members have adequate knowledge and vast experience in the fleld of Finance and
Accounting, Further Shri T.K. Sengupta-Director, Shri M.B. Lal-Director and Shri P K. Gupta-Director, Shri Avinash Joshi-Managing
Directorand Shri Trinath Bahera-Chief Finance Officer are invitees 1o the Audit Committee meeting.
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(ii) HR Committee

HA Committee was constituted to review and recommend to the board various HRA matters/policies of the Company.

Composition of the Commiftee with eflect from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

5l No. | Members of the Committee Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Position in the Committes
1 Shri 5. Balachandran Indepandant & Non-Executive Director Chalrman
2 Shri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Membar
3 Shri T. K. Sangupta Non-Exacutive Director Membar
4 Shri M.B. Lal Non-Exacutive Diractor Mamber
5 Shrl PK. Gupta Non-Executive Director Membar

HA Committea met five times during the financial year 2016-17 These meetings were held on 19" April, 2016, 17" May, 2016,
18" May. 2018, 127 July, 2016 and 12" January, 2017,

(iii) Project Review Committee

Project Review Committee was constituted to review the project related activities and apprise the status to the Board.

Composition of the Committes with effact from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl. No. | Members of the Committes Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Position in the Commities
1 Shri T.K. Sengupta MNon-Executive Direclor Chairman
2 Shri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Member
a3 Shri AK. Srinivasan MNon-Executive Director Member
4 Shrl 5. Balachandran Independent & Mon-Executive Director Member
5 Shri M.B. Lal Non-Exacutive Diractor Member
(] Shri PK. Gupta MNon-Executive Director Mambaer

During the financial year 2016-17, four Project Review Committee meetings were held. These meetings were held on 18" June, 2018,
25" July, 2016, 28" October, 2016 and 29" March, 2017,

(iv) Marketing Committee

Marketing Commitiee was consfituted to review and recommend to the board various marketing matiers/Marketing plan and

strateqy of the Company.

Composition of the Commifies with eflect from 23" February, 2017 is as lollows:

Sl. No. | Members of theCommittee Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Position in the Committee
1 Shri TK. Sengupta Non-Execulive Director Chairman
2 Shri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Member
3 Shri A_K. Srinivasan MNon-Executive Director Member
4 Shri S. Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Director Member
5 Shrl M.B. Lal Non-Executive Director Member

Marketing Committee met three times during the financial year 2018-17 These meetings were held on 31" August, 2018,
2" December, 2016 and 23" February, 2017
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(v) Financial Management Committee

The Financial Management Committee of the Board was constituted to deal and recommend 1o the Board all matters related to
Financing of the Petrochemical project of OPal and any other matier as may be referred 1o this committee by Chairman-OPal.,

Composition of the Committee with effect from 23" February, 2017 Is as follows:

Sl. No. | Members of the Committee Executive/Non-Executive/independent Position in the Committee
1 Shri 5: Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Director Chairman
2 Shri TK. Sengupta Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shri A.K. Srinivasan MNon-Exacutive Director Mambaar
4 Shri M.M. Chitala Indapandant & Non-Executive Director Member
5 Shri Sanjib Datta Non-Executive Director Membar

Financial Management Commitiee met five times during the financial year 2016-17 These meetings were held on 19" April, 20186,
12" July, 2016, 14" October, 2016, 12" January, 2017 and 14" March, 2017

(vi) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The nommation and remuneration Committee determines and recommend to the Board the compensation payable to Directors,
Functional Head, VP & above level positions. All board level compensation is approved by the shareholders and disclosed.

Composition of the Committee with effect from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl No. | Members of the Commities Executive/Non-Executive/lndependent Position in the Commitiee
1 Shri S. Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Direclor Chairman
2 Shri TK. Sengupta Non-Executive Director Member
a Shri MM, Chitale Independent & Non-Executive Direclor Member
4 Shri MB. Lal MNon-Executive Direclor Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee met seven times during the financial year 2016-17 These meetings were held on
;rg“" May, 2016, 12" July, 2016, 23" September, 2016, 2* December, 2016, 23" December, 2016, 23" February, 2017 and
March, 2017,

(vii) Share Allotment Committee

Role of Share Allotment Commiftee is to Issue and alloiment of Securities in the Company. Composition of the Committee with effect
from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

5L No. | Members of the Commities Executive/Non-Executive/lndependent Position in the Commities
1 Shri T.K. Sengupta MNon-Executive Director Chairman
2 Shri ALK Srinlvasan Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shrl 5. Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Director Member
4 Shrl PK. Gupta MNon-Executive Director Member

Share Allotment Committee met one time during the financial year 2016-17. Meeting was held on 127 July, 2016.
(viii) Empowered Committee

The Empowered Committae of the Board was constiluted 1o approve critical issues relaled o completion & commissioning ol Plant.
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Composition of the Committee with effect from 23 February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl. No. | Members of the Committes Executive/Non-Executive/Independent Paosition in the Committes
1 Shrl 5. Balachandran Independant & Non-Executive Diractor Chalrman
2 Shri TK, Sengupta Non-Executive Director Membar
3 Shri A.K. Srinivasan Non-Executive Director Mamber
4 Shri M.B. Lal Non-Executive Director Mamber
5 Shri PK. Gupta Non-Executive Director Memiber

Committee met three times during the financial year 2016-17. Thase meetings were held on 117 April, 20186, 16" June, 2016 and
11" November, 2016,

(ix) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committes of the Board was constituted to parform various CSR activities, Compaosition of the
Committee with effect from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl No. | Members of the Committes Executive/Non-Executive/independent Position in the Commities
1 Shri M.B. Lal MNon-Executive Director Chairman
2 Shri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Member
a3 Shri 5. Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Direclor Member
4 Shri T.K. Sengupta MNon-Executive Director Member
5 Shri PK. Gupta Non-Executive Director Member

C5R Committes is supporied by the CSR Sub-Commitiea to parform the following Roles in the Company:

(i) Telormutate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as
specifiedin Schedule VI,

(i) Torecommend the amount of expenditure fo be incurred on the CSRA activities specified in Schedule VI
iii} Tomanitor the CSRA Poficy of the Company from time fo ime.

(iv) Such other activities as ame incidental for implementing the CSR projects in line with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

(v} Commities shall place on record the CSH activities undertaken during the year in the Annual Report to Board.

{vi) Toinstitute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects or programs or activities undartaken
by the Company.

{vii}) To carry out such other functions, as may be prescribed by the Act or CSR Rules or as may be delegated by the Board, from
tima to tima,

Corporate Responsibility Committee met one time during the financial year 2016-17 Meeting was hald on 28" March, 2017,
(x) Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Commitiee was constituted in the 63" Board Meeting held on 25" July, 2016 to implement a Risk Management
Policy for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the
existence of the Company. Accordingly Board in its 63 meeting held on 25" July, 2016 approved the Risk Management Policy of
OPaL. Further Risk Management Committee prepared a comprehensive framework for Risk Management which Includes
identification of risk elements, their assessment and delermination of responses to those risks.
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Composition of the Committee with effect from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl. No, | Members of the Committee Executive/Non-Executive/independent Position In the Commitiee
1 Shri M.B. Lal Non-Executive Director Chairman
2 Shri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Mamber
3 Shri M.M. Chitale Independent & Non-Executive Direclor Mamber
4 Shri San|ib Datta MNon-Executive Director Mamber
5 Shri Trinath Behera Chief Finance Officer (CFO) Member

During the financial year 2016-17 Committee met once on 28" March, 2017,

(xi) Operation Review Committee

The Board in its 67" meeting held on 23" February, 2017 constituted an Operation Review Committee of the Board to review the
operation of the Company.

Composition of the Committee with effect from 23" February, 2017 is as follows:

Sl. No. | Members of the Commitiee Executive/Non-Executive/independent Position in the Committee
1 Shri TK. Sengupta Non-Executive Diractor Chairman
2 Shri Avinash Joshi Managing Director Member
a Shri AK. Srinlvasan Mon-Executive Director Member
4 Shri S. Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Direclor Member
5 Shri M.B. Lal MNon-Executive Director Member
Thera was no meeting held during the financial year 2016-17,
5.General Meetings
Details of Annual General Meetings held during preceding three years are as under:
] o ] s | e S —
1 |2013-14| B" AGM | 12-09-2014 [13:00 hrs| Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi, Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011 Mil
2 | 201415 9" AGM | 17-09-2015 [17:15 hrs| Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi, Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011 One
3 |2015-16 | 10" AGM | 29-09-2016 [15:00 hrs| Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi, Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011 One
Anendance of Directors in the 10" Annual General Meeting held on 29" September, 2016 is as under:
5l. No. Name of Directors Executive/Non-Executive/independent Attendance at the Meeting
1 Shri Dinesh K. Sarraf Chairman & Non-Executive Director No
2 Shri TK. Sengupta MNon-Executive Director Mo
3 Shri AK. Srinivasan Mon-Executive Direclior Nao
4 Shri M. Ravindran Mon-Executive Direcior No
5 Shri MM, Chitale Independent & Non-Executive Director Yas
6 Shri 5. Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Direclor Yes
7 Shri MLB. Lal Non-Executive Director Yes
8 Ms. Suman Singh Gaur MNon-Executive Director No
g Shri PK. Gupla Non-Executive Director Nao

L




During the financial year 2016-17 two Extraordinary General Meetings (EGM) wera hald and the delails are as under:

5l | No.of Date of
No.|Meetings | Meetings | '™ Piace of Meeting

12:30 hrs 1" Conference Room of ONGC, 2° Floor, Pandit Deendayal Upadhyaya Urja
' Bhawan, 5, Nelson Mandela Marg. Vasant Kunj, New Delhi - 110070

Conference Room No. 5031 of ONGC, 5" Floor, Pandit Deendayal Upadhyaya Urja
2 | 7EGM | 14-03-2017 |15:00 18| grawan 5 Nelson Mandeta Marg. Vasant Kunj, New Delhi - 110070

1 | 6" EGM | 31-01-2017

Atlendance of Directors in 67 Extraondinary General Meeting held on 30" January, 2017 and 77 Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 14" March, 2017 are as under:

Sl.No.|  Name of Directors Executive/Non-Executive/Independent e | e
1 Shri Dinesh K. Saral Chairman & Non-Executive Director Yes Yes
2 Shri TK. Sengupta MNon-Executive Director Yes Yes
3 Shrl A.K, Srinivasan MNon-Executive Director Yes Yos
4 Shri M.M. Chitale Independent & Non-Executive Director MNa Na
5 Shri . Balachandran Independent & Non-Executive Diractor No Yos
& Shri M.B. Lal MNon-Executive Director Mo Yas
7 Ms, Suman Singh Gaur ' Non-Executive Director Mo -
8 Shri PK. Gupta Non-Executive Director Mo No
9 Shri Sanjib Datta * Non-Executive Director Na No
10 Shri Avinash Joshi * Managing Director - Yes

MWote:

1 Ms. Suman Singh Gaur ceased o be Director from the Board of OPal with effect from 31° Januarny, 2017
2.8hvi Sanjib Dama was appointed as a Director with effect from 18 January, 2017
3.5hr Avinash Joghi was appointed as 4 Managng Direcior with effect from 17 Fabruary, 2017

6. Governance Policies

Al OPal, we strive to conduct our business and strengthen our relationships in a manner that is dignified, distinctive and
responsible, Therefore, we have adopted various policies 1o carry out our business in an effiective and efficient manner. Some of
these policles are:
g Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Policy
- Whistie Blower Policy
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Risk Managemant Policy
- Nomination and Remunaration Policy

HR Palicy
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7.Legal Compliance Mechanism

As par Section 205 of the Companles Act, 2013, the functions of the Company Secretary inter-alla, shall include, - "To report o the
Board aboul compliance with the provisions of this Act, the rules made thereunder and other laws applicable o the company”
Company Secretary shall report to the Board about the compliance of the Act, Rules and other laws applicable to the Company. [n
compliance of Section 205 of the Companies Act, 2013, Legal Compliance mechanism has been estabiished in OPaL.

8. Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that the Beard (including commitiees thereof) procedures are followed and
regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, detalls and documents are made available to the
Directors and senior management for effective decision-making at the meetings. The Company Secretary is primarily rasponsible to
assist and advise the Board in the conduct of aflairs of the Company, 1o ensure compllance with applicable stalutory requirements
and Secratarial Standards, to provide guidance to directors and to facllitate convening of meatings. He interfaces between the
management and regulatory authorities for governance matiers.

9. Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March, 2017

Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31" March, 2017 is as follows:

Sl. No. Name of Shareholders/Member No. of Equity Shares held @ 10/~ each | ° of Shares held
1 Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited 99,79,55,639 49.36 %
2 GAIL (India) Limited 99,49,45,000 49.21 %
3 | Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited 2,80,04,033 143 %
4 Others (Individuals) 24,999 0.00 %
Total 202,19,29,671 100 %

on behalf of the Board of Directors
fer ONGC Petro additions Limited

A’”"Y

(Dinesh K. Sarraf)
Chairman

Place: MNew Delhi
Date: 5" July, 2017
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Annexure-lV
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(A= on the financial year ended on 31" March, 2017)

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATIONAND OTHER DETAILS:

Sl. No. Particulars Facts
i) CIN U23209GJ2006PLCOG0282
(i) Registration Date 15" November, 2006
(iii) Name of the Company ONGC Petro additions Limited
-Category / Company Limited by Shares/
) -Sub-Category of the Company Non-Government Company
v Address of the Registered office 1" Floor, Omkara Building, Sai Chokdi, Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011, Gujarat.
and contact detalls Telephone No. : 0265 - 6192600
Fax No: 0265 - 6192666
Email: secretarial @ opalindia.in.
Website: www.opalindia.in
(vi) Whather Listed Company Mo
(i) MName, Address and Contact Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Lid.
details of Registrar and Transfer Beetal House, 3” Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind LSC, New Delhl-110062
Agenl, if any Telephone No. : 011-29961281-83.
Fax No: 011-29961264
Email: beetal @ beelalfinancial.com.
Website: www,bestalfinancial.com
[n respect of issue of Compulsonily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of the company)

il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover ol the Company shall be stated :

Si. No. Name and Description of main * NIC Code of the # % 1o total urnover
products / services Product / service of the Company
1 Patrochamicals 20 100%

* s per Nattonal Indusirial Classification 2008 - Ministry of Stafistics and Programme Implementation
# During Financial Year 2016-17 HDPE, LLOPE, PR CBFS, C8+Fraction, Benzene, Butadiens, Butene-Tand MFO was sold

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

Holding/ | % of | applicable
Sl.No. | Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Eublidmf 1m ST
1 Oil and Matural Gas Corporation Limited Seclion 2 (6)
Address: Pandit Deendayal Upadhyaya " of Companies
Urja Bhawan, 5, Nelson Mandela Marg, TSR S0 PEA 55 il b Act, 2013
Vasant Kunj, New Delhl - 110070
2 GAIL (India) Limited Section 2 (6)
Address: 16, Bhikaji Cama Place, L40200DL1984G01018976 Associate | 48.21% | of Companies
R K Puram, New Delhi - 110066 Act, 2013
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IV.SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

(i) Category-wise Share Holding :

hdhﬂﬂihhﬁhﬂdhm Ha. of Shares heid at the end of the year
Category o Aprll 4, 3018) is. % ol Cha

o %ot - %ol mnm
Shareholders Demat Physical Total Total | Demat Physical Total Total
Sharea |{Shares|

_'_-Plll-l'ﬂ_'l

1) Indian -
{a) IndivdualHUF
ib) Ceniral Gowt . . F i i
{o} Stain Gowt, i5) = = E . R - B
{d) Bodes Corp - 202.19.04. 672 | 202.19.04.672 | 100 - 202, 19,04,672 | 2021004672 | 100 -
'in) Banksl Fl . i 5 ; P ; = ; .
N Any Crher.. = - E 2 N £ = = pe
Sub-Totsl (A) (1) . 2001004 672 | 202,19.04,872 | 100 = 202,10,04,672 | 20218,04672 | 100 -

{2) Foreign
(2] NRis-indhaduais N

[N ENER ERE
[
(N ENIN R
[
¥
wfe o e |0
afele e
wde Jo e |

Promoter . 202.19,04,672 | 202.19.04672 | 100 . 2021904672 | 2021904672 | 100 .
(A) =(A) (1) + (&) (2)

{B) Public Shareholding
{1} Institutions
{in] Mutusl Funds
{h] Banks) =
L) Central Govi %
id) Stabe Govl.(8) =
| {e] Veniune Capanl Funos =
{f} lInsurance Companies =
i) Fus -
ih) Forsign Ventuse F;
Caplial Funds
[} Owhars {Specily) . 3 F . F : . P
Sub-Total (B){1) - = . B - . - =
Hon-inatitutions
{a) Bodios Corp
i .
Il Owarsoas . s
ib} Individuals
I, Inchivicual

wla e fa fe o Je |9
vl g o g o e |
Bola fe fa fu fa e |®
ol e e

Bla i fa fu fd

wola fu fa fo||e
Bln f¥ go v Qo e %
HINEINIEINLRE

hoiding nominal - LR 24,590 0.00 H 24,0899 Pl .00 by

excass of € 1 lakh
{e) Oahars |Specity)

Sub-Total (BHZ) . 24,999 24,590 0.00 - 24,099 259 0.00 -
Total Public
Sharsholding - 24 999 24,908 0.00 - 24,9049 24,899 0.00 -
(B = (B) (1) + (B) (2)
(C) Shares held by custadian for GORs & ADAs

Total {C) - = 2 3 B 5 F = p

Grand Total {A=84C) - 202,18, 280671 | - 202,19, 28.671| 100 . 202,18, 20.671 | 202.19.28.671 | 00 .

=




(ii) Shareholding of Promoters :

Shareholding at the baginning of Shareholding at the end of
the year (i.e. April 01, 2016) the year (i.e. March 31, 2017)
% of
s ; % of %, of Shares % of % of Shares | Change
No. Shareholders' Name total Pledged/ N total Pledged / during
No. of Shares |encumbered | o2 Shares | encumbered | the Year
Shares ofthe | tototal ofthe | tototal
O and Matural Gas
1 | Corporation Limited 89,79,55639| 49.36% 0.00 % 299.78.55,638 | 4836 % 0.00 % 0.00 %%
(ONGC)
2 [G:llﬁjmm] L 004945000 49.21% 0.00 % 094045000 49.21 % 0.00 % 0.00 %o
Gujarat State Petroleum
3 | Corporation Limited 29004033 1.43 % 0.00 % 2,90,04,033 143 % 0.00 % 0.00 %
(GSPC)
TOTAL 202,19,04 672 100 % 0.00 % 202,19,04,672 100 % 0.00 % 0.00 %

{iil) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) :

Cumulative
thfhh.l r'?f&‘g:%. Shareholding during
Reason for Increase) year as on 01.04.2018 the year (April 1, 2016 to
Decrease (e.g. March 31, 2017)
Sl | Name of the Shareholders
Date allotment/ transfer/
- (Promoters) Bonus/ sweat

Lo s % of total % of total

e} No. of Shares No. of Shares

Shares of the Shares of the
Company Company
' Qil and Malural Gas
Corporation Limited (ONGC)

Al the beginning of the Year | 01.04.2018 - 997955639 | 49.36% | B9,7955639 | 49.36%

Increasa during the Year - - = - 89,7955630 | 49.36 %

Decrease during the Year . - - = 99,79.55639 | 49.36%

At the end of the Yaar 31.03.2017 - - - 99.79,55630 | 49.36 %

2 | GAIL (india) Limited (GAIL)

At the beginning of the Year | 01.04.2018 - 994045000 | 4921% | 094945000 | 4921 %

Increase during the Year - - - . 594945000 | 4921 %

Decrease during the Year & # * - 994945000 | 4921°%

At the end of the Year 31.03.2017 * - = 994945000 | 4921 %
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Cumulative

Shareholding atthe | g, rahoiding during

Reason for Increase/| beginning of the year as the year (April 1, 2016 1o
Decrease on 01.04.2016 :
Si. | Name of the Shareholders | | (e.g. allotment/ March 31, 2017)

Bonua/ No. of Shares No. of Shares

sweat equity etc.) Shares of the Shares of the
Company Company

3 Gugarat State Petroleum
Corporation Limited (GSPC)

At the beginning of the Year | 0L.04.2(M6 - 2.90,04,033 143 % 2.90,04,033 143 %

Increase during the Year - - . - 2,80,04,033 143 %

Decrease during the Year - = - - 2,50,04,033 143 %

At the end of the Year 30327 - - - 2,90.04.033 143 %

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top 10 Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promolers and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) :

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the
8L the year as on 01.04.2016 year (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
iy For each of the Top10 Sharehalders = e
No. of Shares of the Company No. of Shares of the Company
1 Shiri Sunil Kumar Gupta
Al the beginning of the Year 5000 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
SoldTransler during the Year ] 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
Al the end of the Year 5000 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
2 Shri Neera Lal
At the beginning of the Year 5000 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
SoldTransler during the Year ] 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 5000 0.00 %% 5000 0.00 %
3 Shri Sidharatha Sur
At the beginning of the Year 5000 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year ] 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %
Al the end of the Year 5000. 0.00 % 5000 0.00 %

|




Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the

” the year as on 01.04.2016 year (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
ne | For each of the Top10 Sharehoiders
No. of Shares ﬁ:,“;fm”: No. of Shares ":,‘:'wm :w"“!
Shri Vikay N. lyah
Al the beginning of the Year 4009 0.00 % 40999 0,00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 4999 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 49469 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 4999 0.00 % 4509 0.00 %

Shri A, Satish Kumar

At the beginning of the Year 4047 0.00 % 4887 0.00 %%
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 4997 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 4097 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 4997 0.00 % 4097 0.00 %
Shin Vivek Chandrakant Tongaonkar

At the beginning of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
SoldTransfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 1 0.00 %a 1 0.00 %
Shri Kolipalli Satyanarayana

At the beginning of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00%
Sold/Transler during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
Al the end of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 0,00 %
Shri R. Banernes

At the beginning of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 Q.00 %
Bought during the Yaar 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %%
Al the end of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
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{v) Shareholding of Direciors and Key Managerial Personnel as on 31" March, 2017 :

During the Financial Year 2016-17, no Directors and Key Manageria| Parsonnel (KMP) of the Company holds any shares
in the Company, except the following :

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the
s Fﬂ—nhll::;m the year as on 01.04.2016 year (April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017)
&= Key Managerial Personnel (KIMF) No. of Shares %,ﬁ_m;f‘m No. of Shares :fu;-mglmw
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
1 Shri Kotipalli Satyanarayana '
Al tha baginning of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
SoldTranster during the Year 0 0.00 % 1 0.00 %
Al the end of the Year 1 0.00 % 1 0.00 %

Hate:
L Sl Kotipall Satyanasspena, ceaded 16 be Chisl Exscutve Dffeer ([CEQ) ang Key Managedial Persordal (KMP) of the company with sfec! frem 307 Aprl 2017

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment !

{# in Million)
Secured
Excudng | Loms. . | "% |indeotadness
Deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year as on 01.04.2016
i) Principal Amount 17393185 | 3885500 | -NIL- 212786.85
i) Intarest due but nol paid -MIL- MIL- | -MIL- ML
iii) Interest accrued but not due 184 -NIL- |  -NIL- 184
Total (I+il+lif) 17393369 | 3885500 | -NIL- 212788.69
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition 1401642 | 128428.85 -MIL- 14244530
Reduction -4578145 | -4890898 | -NIL- -94780.44
Net Change -31765.03 | 7942987 | -NIL- 47664.84
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year as on 31.03.2017
i} Principal Amount 14216686 | 11467281 | -NIL- 25683967
i) Interest due but not paid -MIL- -MIL- -NIL- -MIL-
iil} Interest accrued but not due 180 361206 | -NIL- 3613.86
Total (i+ii+iii) 14216866 | 118284.87 | -NIL- 260453.53

=




VIi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andi/or Manager :

{®in Million)
Name of MD/WTD/Manager &
i:;_ Particulars of Remuneration Shri Avinash Joshi * s " “mlm
(Managing Director)
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17 (1) 0.68 . . 0.88
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of pemuisites w's 17 (2) Income Tax Act, 1961 = - -
(c) Profits in lleu of saiary under Section 17 (3) Income Tax = - =
Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option - - -
3 | Sweat Equity = 2 -
4 | Commission
- a5 % of profit S = =
'mrﬂﬂd&--i - . .
5 | Othars, please specily . - -
Total (A) 0.8 - - 0.88
Ceiling as per the Act ﬂm:::}::ﬂnéS&ﬁ;nMﬂPmﬂnfSMh?a!
Note:

¥ The Company does nar have any Whote-tme Direcior andior Manager during the Financial Year 2016-17 excepr Shn Avinash Joshi a5 Managerg Deegios

* During the Fnancial Year 2016-17 Shei Avinash Joshi (IAS) appointed as Managing Direcior of the Company with affect from 1" February, 2007 and furifwer

B. Remuneration to other Direclors :

sppainied a5 Key Managenal Personnel (KMP) with efiect from 1° May, 2017

{1 inn Millan)
sl - Mame of Directors Total
No. Particulars of Remuneration Shri S. Balachandran | Shri M.M. Chitale | Amount
1 | Independent Direcioms
+ Fag for attending Board'Commiliee mesatings 0.540 0.255 0.795
= Commission
= Others, please specify
Total (1) 0.540 0.255 0.795
2 | Other Non-Executive Direclors
» Fae for attending Board/Commitiee meetings - 3
= Commission _
= Others, please specily ) ) )
Total (2) - - .
Total (B) = (1) + (2) 0.540 0.255 0.795
Total Managerial Remuneration 0.540 0.255 0.795
The sitting fees of Directors are nol excesding one lakl rupees per
Overall Ceiling as per the Act meeting as required under Section 197(5 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Compandes [Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel] Rule, 2074
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C. Remunaration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/IMANAGER/WTD :

8l - 2 Total

No. Particulars of Remuneration K. Satyanarayana | S.P.Pankaj | Trinath Behera | s mount
CEO* Company Secretary cFO

{® in Millian)

1 | Gross salary
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) 4.04 273 460 12.36
of the Income Tax Acl, 1961
{b) Value of perguisites u's 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 = & = -
(c) Profits in leu of satary under Section 17{3) Income Tax - _ = £
Act, 1861
Stock Option . . .
Sweal Equity i 5 =
4 | Commission
- B8 % ol profit - -
- others, specify... - =
5 | Others, please specily = = ~ -
Total 4.94 273 4.69 12.36

Note:
* Ghri K, Satyanarayana, ceased & be Chief Executive (Miicer [CEQ) and ey Managerial Parsonnel (KMP) of the Company with efiec! from 30" Apni, 2007

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Section of Details of Penalty/ Authority |  Appeal

Brief
Type the Companies | Punishment/ Compounding | [RD/ NCLT/ | made, if any
Act iption fee imposed Court] |(give details)

Penalty . -
(A) Company Punishment - =
Compounding - -
Penalty - -
(B) Directors Punishment . -
Compounding . -
Fanalty - .
Punishmant - -
Compounding . -

There were no penalties/punishmenticompounding of oflences for the breach of any Section of Companies Act against
the Company or its Directors or other officers in default, during the financial year 2016-17.

(C) Other Officers
in Default

on behalf of the Board of Directors
for ONGC Petro additions Limited

A"’"Y

(Dinesh K. Sarraf)
Chalrman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5" July, 2017

=]



Form AOC 2
Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis : NIL
2. Datails of contracts or arrangements or transactions al arm's length basis:

Annexure-V

Hama (8) of tha Mature of Duration of the Saliant terma of Date (n) Amount
related party contracts/ contracts the contracts or g ot pald as
and w or tmneactions
nature of relationship Iransaclions transactions value, if any the It wy
(=) ib) {e} (d) (e} m
il & Netura| Gas Conparation Purchsseof Fesd | OL042016m Purchase of Feed Eock rom ime fo time at | Dows not raguing
Limaed (ONGG) ook NCAINT | marist clsteemined prics (Rs. 18,174.88 milen) | Baard Apneoval Hil
{doint Verturor) P
bd:u OL04.2008 1o Aeimbursament of Salary o ONGC, for Doas not requine Nl
E@m 31,02.2017 employess on deputaton (Rs AS64 mion) | Baard Approval
Rapmibursomant of 004 2006 o Rombumomant of Direciory nominabon fee and | Doas not reguens il
Expanses by ONGC 31032017 travaling expenses by ONGC, (Rs. 0.30 million) Board Appaoval
GAIL {inda) Limited (GAIL) m o siosz016 hrnamwu Salary 1 E:.n. Inda Ud, | Does n:p requie -
behall | "3103.2017 aMgioyess on dapulation (Fs. 10.67 milion) |  Boasd Approva
{Joent Ventuner) of OPal.
042018 o Purchase of Gas from time jo tme ol Daors ol reguing
Purchase of Gas 31,03 2017 markat detsrmined price (Rs. 635 70 milion} | Board Agprowal N
Gujarat State Petrolswm 7
" o044 2016 o Purchase of Gas from time to tma &t Doas not meguine
ﬁ;‘f"“.’: e LA (GBPC) Purchase of Gas 31032017 | market determined price (s 3028 76 million) | Board Approval o
Dishasj SEZ Lirmmad (DSL) o104 2018 1o Laass mal lof land and DS2 charges Doas nol redquins
{Comman Directorship) Lease Rents! 31,03 2017 {Rs 84.64 million) Board Appeoval N
M"‘“""".ﬁ"m;f;& Em‘:n 01.04.2016 1o Reimbussement of Salary to MAPL, for Does not requine -
:C":":‘m""‘: n""""m,“,m,, A ey 31002017 nmploynes on deputation (Rs, 6,08 milkon) Baared Appeoral
Sl Avinash Jeah| (MD) Etpsoy sl ";f“m_zgﬁ';“ Flemunermton to KMP (R 088 milllon)
Shn K, Satyanamyana (CEO) Emplaymant ﬁ;:’*‘ﬁ%ﬁ‘;‘ Aemuneration to KMP (Rs. 4.4 million) .
Shri Trinash Behera (CFO) Empioyment ";;:'sﬁ'aﬁ'r Aemunesation 1o KMP (Rs. £ 68 million) il
f“"c 5“::"'5 el :""'"" Emplayment ne Remuneration fo KMP (Rs. 2 73 million) . Nil
Shri J. § Sainl {COOD)" Employment i g Related party (Rs. 0,67 miflion) il
Shii Saumya Chakrabarly (GO0 Erployment ﬂ%ﬁmméaw Fielited party (R, 0,38 milion) - Wil
1S.hn Ht:g] Kumar Smmsiava Emgloymaent 1‘;:1333}};}:; Fiolated party (Fs, 021 milkon) . il
Roamuneimstion o H &
mwﬁnf:hw,“ Eyms g e 0.2 miny ! WP - i

*During the FY 2006-17 Shri J 5. Saini [C00) was on deputation fom GAIL 6if 8 June, 2008 and Shri Sewnys Chakraborty was appointed on OPal roll from 1"March, 2017
= Stwi Sarensh Kowpal was in empioyrnent 1 31 Ociobes 2075 and Rs 0,02 milion paid as venable pay in Snancesl year 2018-17

Date: 5" July, 2017
Place: New Delhi

on behalf of the Board of Directors
for ONGC Petro additions Limited

(Dinesh K. Sarraf)
Chairman
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Annexure-VI

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Interms of Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1

10.

Recycling of MP condensate from Process Steam system
1o Deaeralor to maximize heat recovery and minimize
waler losses.

Optimizing excess air in Furnaces/ boilers for minimizing
fuel consumption.

Use of Steam lurbine driven pumps and keeping electric
maotor driven pumps in standby.

Enabling of performance controllers and anti-surge
automation for optimized operation of big centrifugal
comprassors in DFCU.

Minimizing CG compressor discharge pressure for
reducing power consumption.

Most of the motors in polymer plants are with VFD facility
o consarve power consumption.

Steam trap survey and optimisation of steam loss through
good engineering practices,

Recovery of cooling tower biowdown after treatment in
ECTS and using as a make up water for Cooling lowens.

Recovery of Surlace condensate and polished
condensate and treatmant in CPU and uses for steam
generation to minimize water usage:

Continuous monitoring of flare system for trouble-
shooting H.C. losses and minimize steam consumplion
based on flame condition.

B.TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONS

i

Technologies imported : DFCU and PGHU : M/s Linde
AG, Germany, Benzene & Butadiene Unit : Mis Air
Liguide (Formerly Lurgi GmbH, Germany). The
lechnologies have been lully absorbed with Licensor
training of key operation personnel in class room as well
as in plant during start-up. All these plants are now fully
operational and being operated by OPal.,

Improvements in operability by modification of Air door for
pilot burners in furnaces and optimization of procedures
1o minimize starl up time.,

3

Successiul adoption of first Ineos-PP technology in India
and completion of PGTA (Performance Guarantee Test
Aun) Polypropylene plant.

Customer acceptance of PP and HDPE grades within a
very short time.

Successful technology absorption of first Ineos-
LLOPE/HDPE swing technology in India.

‘Know-why' exercises, basic investigations into the
praduct, process and systems of technology by
unpacking of a technology package. Optimization and
improvement of product/process/systems and related
equipments in Polymar plants.

Successful absorption and completion af PGTR in
Butene-1 plant. Plant capacity utifisation 120 %.

The Utility units i.e. raw water system, AWTP (BHEL,
Ranipet), IAPA/ Nitrogen (MW/S BOC), CPP (M/S BHEL),
Cooling towers (MS GIL), DM Water & Condensate
polishing Unit (M/5 Thermax) plant have been
commissioned and in operation. Respeclive
technologies are absorbed.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND

ouTGO

The Company has earned foreign exchange equivalenl
to ¥ 676.09 million (Previous Year ¥ 0.21 million interest
incoma on shorl term deposit with bank) on account of
revenue from export sales and incurred foreign currency
expenditure equivalent o T 12,721.08 milion (Previous
Year T 3611.35 million) during the accounting period
ended 31" March, 27,

an behalf of the Board of Directors
for ONGC Petro additions Limited

(Dinesh K. Sarraf)
Chalirman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5" July, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

{ 27 Flioot, Prasanno Houss, Associoned Socety,
‘ m Cpp Rodholaishng Park. N, Alota Siodurm,

To,
The Members of ONGC Petro additions Limited

i. Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Staterments of ONGC Petro additions Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Inciuding other comprehensive income),
the statement of Cash Flows, the statemant of changes in the equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other axplanatory information. (Herein afier referned to as "Standalone Ind AS Financial Statemants”).

ii. Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the act™) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial parformance including other comprehensive income and cash flows and change in equity of
tha Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Sectlon 133 of the Acl, read with relevant rule issued there under. This responsibility includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding the assets ol the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting records, relevant fo
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatemant, whether due o lraud or armor.

iil. Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We have laken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards required that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audlt o obtain reasonable assurance about whather the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements are free from
material misstatement. An audit involvas performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers intermal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statemenis
that give a true and fair view, in order to design audil procedures that are approgriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Board
ol Directors of the company, as well as evaluating the overall presenation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Stalements,

Ve believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalong Ind AS Financial Statements.

iv. Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, Standalone Ind AS Financial
Stalements giva the information required by the Act in the manner 80 required and glve a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at
31" March, 2017, its linancial performance Including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and statement of changes in the
equity for the yearended on that date.

v. Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Cantral Governmant of India in terms
of the Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in ‘Arnexure & a statermnent on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
said Order, to the extent applicable.
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Shah Mahta & Bakshi
Chartered Accountanis

ii, Based on the verification of bocks of account of the Company and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, we
give balow the Directions/Additional Sub-Directions issued by the Comptrolier and Auditor General of India in terms of
Section 143(5) of the Act:

a, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company has execuled lease deed for
leasehold land and thare is no leasahold land for which lease dead is pending.

b. According to information and explanations given o us, the company has waived Rs.3.80 million due from one of the
customers in respect of sale made in Financial Year 2015-16. There are no other cases of walver/write off of
debizflloans/interest wherever applicabie during the year,

c. As perinformation and explanations given o us, no inventories are lying with third parties and no gifts/grants are received
from government or other autharties,

ii. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 2o far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in the equity
dealt with by this Repor! are in agreemen! with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aloresaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Staterments comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
spacified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued there under;

&. On the basis of the written representations received from the direclors as on 31 March, 2017, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 317 March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect 1o the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the opeérating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate reportin ‘Annexure B and

g. In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, we report as under with
to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Beport in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigalions on Its financial position in its Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statemnants - refer to Note No. 40 to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii. The Company has made adequate provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standard, for material
foreseeable losses if any on long term contracts. However the company has not entered into any derivative contract.

iil, Thare are no amounts that are required to be transterred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

iv. The disclosure requirement as envisaged in Notification G 5.R 308(E) dated 30" March, 2017 is not applicable to
company - AaferMNote-14.1,

For Shah Mehia & Bakshi
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 103824W
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Shalh Mahis & Bakahi
Chartared Accountanis

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Staternents for the year anded 31" March, 2017, we report that:

il

i

X

Xii.

{a) The Company has ingeneral maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
offixed assets;

(B} The Company has a regular programma of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are veritied in a
phased manner. In accordance with this programme, fixed assets having substantial value were verified during the year and
no material discrepancy has baen noticed. In our opinion this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the company and the nature of its assels.

{c) According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of the Company the title deeds of
the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

i. According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the

Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loan to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act,

The Company has not granted any loans, investmanl, guaranteas and the securllies as envisaged w's 185 & 186 of the Acl

In our opinion and according to information & explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public as par the provisions of the Act,

. The maintenance of cost records as required under rule-3 of the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is

not applicable as the turmover of the company during the preceding financial year is less than prescribed limit.

i. According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues;

{a) The company is genarally regular in depositing the amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax. Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and
any other statutory dues, as applicabie, with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the company did not have any
dues on account of employees’ state insurance and duty of excise.

Thare was noamount payable in mspect of undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Value Added
Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other statutory dues in arrears as on 31" March, 2017 for the period of more than
six months from the date they become payable.

{b) According to information and explanations given to us there are no disputed statutory dues as on 31" March, 2017 which
have not been deposited except an amount of Rs. 2 million (Previous year Rs. 2 million) in respect of demand for stamp duty
by the Deputy Commissioner of Revenue and Stamp, Mumbai for the year 2009,

_In our opinion and according to the information and axplanations given 1o us, tha Company has not defaulted in repayment of

Loans or borrowings to linancial institutions, bank & Governmant or dues to debentura holder,

. The company raised money by way of term loan during the year and in our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given o us the said funds were applied for the purpases for which those were raised.
The company has not raised any money either by way of initial public offer or further public offer {Including debt instruments),

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud commitied by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employess has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

. According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the

company has paid/provided for the managerial remuneraiion in accordance with the provision of Section 197 read with
Schedule'V to the Act,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the company is not a Nidhi Company, Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable.
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xill, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,
fransactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 & 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company has issued fully Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) on private placement basis during the year under review.
Pending utilisation, the funds were temporarily used for the purpose other than for which they were raised but were ultimately
utilised for staled end use.

xv, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the
company has not entared into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connectad with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv)
of the order is not applicabla.

xvi.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company is not required to be registered
s 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi

Membership No. 584605
Place: Vadodara
Date: 22™ May, 2017,

G|
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Chariered Accountanis

Annexure-B: Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ONGC Petro additions Limited (“the Company”) as of
31" of March, 2017 In conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financlal Statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management |s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financlal controls based on the intermal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequata internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the saleguarding of lis assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
racords, and the timely preparalion of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal linanclal controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting
{the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed fo be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the exten| applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. Thosa Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether
adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intarnal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness axists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assesemant of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Staternents, whether due to fraud or error.

Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienl and appropriate o provide a basis for our aud|t opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intermal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policles
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 10
parmit preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Staterments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becausge of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financlal reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstaternents due to ermor or fraud may occur and not be datected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorale.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequale internal financial controls system over financlal reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March 2017, based on the internal control
over linancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi

Date: 22" May, 2017,
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Balance Sheet
(ANl amounts are in As. milllons unboss othorwise stated)
-1 Nole Az al As at As at
No. | Pertiodias No. March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
ASSETS
() MNon-current assets
{a) Proparty, plant and equpment 4 22557757 2757713 1,304 89
(b} Capital work-in-progress 5 4768218 198,607 91 188,14720
{g) intangibe assets G 114.59 135.08 143.04
{d) Intangible assets under development 7 24 68 186 120
(@) Financsal assets
(i) Loans B 303.70 303.30 174.07
{f) Non curent lax assels g 16.42 1370 12
(gh Other non-cumant assets 10 8,302 54 26,643.07 30,7417
() Defarred Tax Asset (Liability) n 1,450,409 1,020.08) -
Tolal non-current assets 28346153 2 97 218,637.28
(2) | Current assels
(a) Imveniones 12 955538 36190 -
(b} Financial assats
i) Trade recehables 13 34162 B34 -
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 14 5243 6.80 B30.67
(i) Bank balances other than (i) above 15 19.05 2164 898,10
() Othar currant assets 10 238018 8642 5461
Total current assets 12.348.64 67790 1,883.38
Total assets 295.810.17 25294387 220, 520.66
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
i Equity
{a} Equity share capial 16 20,219.30 20,219.30 20,219.30
{n) Othar aquity 17 B8.110.26 16.933.95 744906
Total equity 28,329.56 3715325 27,660.36
Liabilities
{2) Mon-current liabilities
(a) Financial habilities
(i) Bomowings ] 179,861.25 128,130,865 14634728
(i) Cther firanclal kablities 19 . 1,384 48 7104
b} Provissons 20 TB.92 4739 15.31
Total non-current liabilities 179,940.17 128,562.52 147,073.63
(3) | Current liabilities
{a) Financial abilities
(i) Bormowings 18 6388748 B60.255.00 40,850 88
(i) Trade payable 21 418427 - 2
(hil) Othar financial Rabikes 19 18,292 69 25.880.1 4, 76758
(b} Provisions 20 283 B.64 262
(e) Othar currant kabiltias 22 173.17 B4.35 148,61
Total current liabilities 67.540.44 6,226.10 35,778.67
Tolal flabilities 267,480,681 215, 192,852.30
Total equity and liabilities 29581017 252,943 87 220,520.66

See accompanying notes 1o the financial statements 1-47

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi

For and on behalf of the OPal Board

Chartered A

a3 =2 Y O
{4 P Shah) (Subodh Prasad Pankaij) (Trinath Behera) {Manoj Kumar Srivastava)
Parinaer Company Secretary Chigf Finance Officer Presiden!
M No: 033115 g
FRAN No: 103824W i

,. n %.}-v"‘"h :..-—-’""‘

Place : New Delhi iT. 1] { Avinash Joshi)
Date : 22" May, 2017 Director Managing Director
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ONGC Petro additions Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

(Al amounts are in As. milllons unless olherwise staled)

5l MNote For the year ended For the year anded
Mo, | Perticulars No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
I Revenue from operations 23 1,004.48 s T
Il Othes income 24 44 28 0.81
[} Tatal Income (k+H) 1.138.76 38.36
v EXPENSES
Cost of mw materials consumed 23 654599 -
Purchases of sock-in-trade 26 - 42.41
Changes in inveniones of finished goods, WIB, siock in irade 27 (6.663.97) (0.56)
Employae banafit expanss 28 164,08 .
Salfing & Distribution expenses 20 BAE.31 -
Finance costs 30 TO55.47 Ji170
Depreciation N 342732 24757
Total expenses (IV) 12,44029 76137
i Profitf{Loss) before tax {I-IV) (11.301.53) {729.01)
Vi Tax expense;
(1) Current tax - -
{2) Datarred tax 33 (2478.57) 1,020.08
(2.479.57) 1,020.08
VIl | Profit{Loss) for the year (V-V1) (B.B21.96) {1,748.09)
Vil | Other Comprehensive income
A (i) hemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasuremant of the defined banelil plans (R -
(i} Income tax relafing o above - -
Total other comprehensive Income (1.73) -
1% Total comprehensive income for the year (Vil+VIIl) (8,823.69) (1,749.09)
X Earnings par squily share (Face value ol Rs. 107 aach):
(1) Basic & Diluted (in Rs.) 34 (4.38) {0.87)
See accompanying notes fo the financial statements 1-47
For Shah Mehta & Bakshi For and on behalf of the OPaL Board
&= . ~ 6Bk [main-
{Subodh Prasad Pankaf) {Trinath Behera) {Manoj Kumar Srivastava)
Company Secrotary Chief Finance Officer Prosidant
1 LT
Place : New Delhi { T.K.Sengupta) { Avinash Joshi)
Date : 22" May, 2017 Director Managing Dirsctor
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Statement of Cash Flows
{AN amounts are in As. milllons unless olherwise staled)
For the year ended For the year anded
Pasticulers March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

MNet Profit{Loss) for the year -8,823.69 -1,749.09
Adjustments fior:
Tax expanss recognised in profit or |oes -2.4T0.57 1,020.08
Depreciation and amortisation expense 342732 24757
Inleres! expansa 705547 anwo
Interest Income -15.08 -
Prafii on sale of I & equipment 0,01 -
TER T9848.12 1,579.35
Operating Profit/ (Loss) before Changes in assets and ilabilities -835.57 -169.74
Changes in assets and kabilliges,
Inventorias <8,193.48 ~351590
Trade and other recenables -333.28 834
Other current assets -2,038.15 75165
Other current payables 8.995.93 -2 66827
Prowisions 2572 38.10
-2/603.26 -2,239.76
Cash generated from operations -3,438.83 -2,400.50
Income taxes paid 272 .99
Net cash generated byf{used in) operaling activities “A" “3,441.55 -2,410.49
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Paymanis lor property, plant and equipment including intangitle assets 34 832 48 -17.335.1
Changes n Mon Current assets 1833973 3.991.87
Proceads from disposal of property, plant and squipment 0,18 022
Net cash (used in) investing activities “B” -16,492 .56 -13.343.62

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceads from share warrants . 18,738.50
Relund ol share application Money . -7505 52
Procaads from Bomowings 13823082 BY 70338
Repaymenis of Borrowings -86. 57148 -82 143 .89
Interest paid -22.703.49 21 B63 43
Imterest receved 16.09 -
Net cash generated by financing activities “C" 19.979.94 14,930.04
Met increasaf{decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 45.83 -B24.07
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.60 B30.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5243 6.60
MNotes:

1. Tha .uhmru cash flow staternant has baen prepared under the [ndirect mathod as sl out in the Ind-AS 7 on statement of Cash Flow
2. Cash and Cash equivalent represenis Bank Balances with Schedulad Bank as per Note No. 14
3. Previous years figures have been regrouped when necessary o conlorm fo the year's classilication

For Shah Mehta & Bakshi For and on behalf of the OPal Board
Chartered Sial St b
———
C @ . 6%}_ Qa,u';w.ﬂhi"?f
{J P Shah) {Subodh Prasad Pankaj) {Trinath Behera) { Mano] Kumnar Srivastava)
FPartnar ; Company Secrolary Chiel Finance Officar Prosidant
M No: 033115 G -
FRAN No: 103824W - - :
L L hﬂ-l'-'
h'\n\r"w -—'-'"-.”
Place : New Delhi (T { Avinash Joshi)
Date : 22 May, 2017 Direcior Managing Direcior
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(Al amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity
(a) Equity share capital
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2015 20,219.30
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2016 20,219.30
Changes during the year =
Balance as at March 31, 2017 20,219.30
{b) Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particul Share application Retained (Money received| Total
- money pending eamings against share
allotment warranis
Balance as at April 1, 2015 as previously reported 7.505.52 {13.47) 7492.05
Share issue expansa - (42.99) - {42.99)
Balance as at April 1, 2015 (I) 7,505.52 (56.46) 7.449.06
Loss for the year - (1,749.09) - {1,749.09)
Issue of share warrants = . 18,738.50 18,739.50
Refund of share application money {7.505.52) - - (7.505.52)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax - = - -
Total comprehensive incomea for the year (Il) (7.505.52) (1,749.09) 18,739.50 9.484.89
Balance as at March 31, 2016 (lli=l+) - {1,805.55) 18,738.50 16,933.95
Loss for the year - (B.621.96) . (8.821.96)
Remeasurement ol defined benefit plans, net of tax & {1.73) - (1L73)
Total comprehensive income for the year (IV) = {8,823.69) - (8,823.69)
Balance as at March 31, 2017 (V= lll+1V) - {10,629.24) 18,739.50 8,110.26
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-47
For Shah Mehta & Bakshi For and on behalf of the OPaL. Board
Chartered Accoumiian
¢ ‘@ B AT
(J P Shah) (Subodh Prasad Pankaij) (Trinath Behera) (Manoj Kumar Srivastava)
Parinar Company Secretary Chigl Finance Officer President
M No: 033115 :
FRN No: 103824W 2
i b~
Bt =i
Place : New Delhi (T:K.Sengu {Avinash Joshi)
Date : 22™ May, 2017 Director Managing Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

1

c.d

Corporate information

ONGC Petro additions Limited ("OPaL’ or “the Company”)
iz a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in
India having |ts registered office at 1% Floor, Omkara
Building, Sai Chokdi, Manjalpur, Vadodara-390011,
Gujarat, The principal activity ol the Company is to
manufacture, purchase, sale and trade petrochamicals,
patrochemical products and its byproducts.

The company is a joint veniure between Oil & Natural
Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC), GAIL (India) Limited
(GAIL) and Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited
(GSPC).

. Application of new and revised Ind AS

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and nofified
by the Ministry of Corporate Attairs under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended) till the financlal statements are authorized
have been considered in preparing these financial
slatemants.

Standards/ Amendments issued but not yet
effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the
Companies (Indian Accounling Standards)
(Amendments) Rules, 2017, notifying amendments to Ind
AS 7 ‘Staterment of cash flows' and Ind AS 102, 'Share-
based payment.' These amendmenis are in accordance
with the recent amendments made by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 1o 1AS 7, 'Staterment
of cash fiows' and IFRS 2,'Share - based payment’,
raspectively. The amendments are eflactive to the
Company from April 1, 2017,

Amendmenttoind AST7:

The amendment o Ind AS 7 requires the enlilies 1o
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion
ol a reconcillation between the opening and closing
balances in the balance sheet for llabilities arising from
financing activities, to maeat the disclosure requiremaeant.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the
amendment and the effect on the financial statements is
being evaluated.

Amendmenttoind AS 102:

The amendment 1o Ind AS 102 provides specific
guidance 1o measurement of cash-settled awards,
madification of cash-setled awards and awards thal
include a net settlement feature in respect of withholding
laxes.

As the Company has not issued any stock options plans,
hence this amendment will have no effect on the
Company's financial statements.

3. Significantaccounting policies

3.1 Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification dated 16" February,
2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as “Ind AS") notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect
from April 1, 2018.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as
amended). These are Company's first Ind AS financial
statements. The date of tramsition to Ind AS is
April 1, 2015, The mandatory exceptions and opfional
exemplions availed by the Company of First-lime
adoption have bean detalied in Note 3.22,

Previous period figures in the financial statements have
bean restaled in compliance 1o Ind AS,

Up to the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company had
prapamad the financial statemants under the historical
costconventlon on accrual basis in accordance with the
Generally Accepled Accounting Principles (Previous
GAAP) applicable in India and the applicable accounting
standards as prescribed under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

In accordance with Ind AS 101-"First time adoption of
Indian accounting Standards” (Ind AS 101), the Company
has presented a reconciliation of Shareholders' equily
under Previous GAAP and Ind AS at March 31, 2016, and
April 1, 2015 and of the Profit after tax as per Previous
GAAP and Tolal Comprehensive Incoma under Ind AS for
the year ended March 31, 2018. Refer note 44 and 45.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have beasn prepared on the
historical cost basis excepl for certain financial
Instrumeants that are measured at fair values at the end of
egach reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Histoncal costis genarally based on the fair value of the
considaration given in exchange for goods and services.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or
non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criterfa’s set out in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation
of Financial Statements' and Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013.



The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee
(Rs.) and all values are rounded 1o the nearest two
decimal million except otherwise stated.

FairValue Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an
assel or paid to lransler a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measuremant date
under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities
measured at fair value into one of thres levels depending
on the ability fo observe inputs employed in their
measureamant which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 inpuls are inputs that are observable, aither
directly or indirectly, other than guoted prices
included within lavel 1 for the asseat or liability.

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs lor the asseat
or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company's
assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue arising from sale of products is recognized
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
passed tothe buyer, which is at the point of transfer of
goods o customers, and the revenue can be measured
rallably and it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represants
amounts received or receivable for goods provided in the
normal course of business, net ol discounts; value added
tax, central sales tax and custom.

Interest income

Interest incomes from financial assels are recognised at
{he effactive interast rate applicabla in initlal recognition.

Revenue with respact to other operaling income and
other income is recognised when a reasonable certainty
as o its realization exist.

3.4 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenaver the
terms of the lease transier substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the
Company. All other leases are classified as operating
leases,

Land under non-perpelual leases are trealed as
operating leasa payments.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally
recognised on a siraight-line basis over the lerm ol the
relevant lease. Contingent rentals, if any, arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
pariod in which they ane incurrad.

3.5 Foreign Exchange Transactions

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees
which represents the currency of the primary econamic
emvironment inwhich itoperates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's
functional currency {foreign currencles) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated using closing rate of exchange prevailing on
the last day of tha reporting period.

Exchange differences on monelary items are recognised
in statament of profit and loss in the pariod in which they
arise.

Exchange diflerence arising in respect of long term
foreign currency monetary items that relates to
acquisition of a depreciable capital asse! are added to or
deducted from the cost of the assat and are depreciated
over the remaining usatul life of an assat.

3.6 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs spacifically identified to the acquisition
or construction or production of gualifying assels is
capitalized as partof such assets. A qualifying asset is
one that nacessarily takes substantial period ol time 1o
getready for intended use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualitying assets is deducted Irom the borrowing costs
aligibde for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profitorloss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3.7 Employee Benefits

|

Employee benelils include provident fund, gratuity and
leave encashment.

Defined contribution plans

Employee benefit under defined contribution plan
comprising of provident fund s recognized basaed on the
amount of obligation of the Company to contribute to the
plan. The contribution is paid to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner, which is expensed during the year.

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit ptan.
The present valua ol the obligation under such dafined
benafit planis determined based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benelfit entittement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation, The obligation is
measured at the present value of the estimated fulure
cash flows. The discount rale used for determining the
present value of the cbligation under defined benefit
plans, is based on the prevailing market yialds on
government bond as at the balance sheat date.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding nel
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheel
with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income |s reflected immediately In retained earnings and
is not rectassified to profit or loss. Past service cost Is
recognised In profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment or curtallment. Nel intarest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit iability or asset. Defined benefil
cosis are categorized as follows:

- Service cost (including currenl service cosl, pas
service cosl, as well as gains and losses aon
curtailments and seftlements);

= Nal inerest expense or incomsa; and
- Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of
defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense’. Amount resulting from
curtailmant/ plan amendment are accounted for as past
service costs,

The Company confributes all ascertained kabilties with
to a gratuity fund 'ONGC Petro Additions Employees

Group Gratuity Trust' administered which is governed by
board of trustees. The trust has taken the group policy
with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 1o meel s
obligation towards gratuity.

The gratuity benefit obligation recognised in the Financial
Statements represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation s limited to the present value of any
economic benefits avallable in the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in future contributions o the

plang.
Short-term employee benelits

The undiscounted amount of short-lerm employee
benefits expected to ba paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employess are recognised during the year
whan the employses render the service, Thesa benalits
include performance incentive and leave encashment
which are expected o occur within twalwe months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

The cost of short-term leave encashment is accounted as
under:

{a) Incase of accumulated leave encashment, when
employees render the services that increase their
entitterment of future leave encashment; and

(b) In case of non-accumulating leave encashment,
when the absances ocour,

Long-term employes benafits

Leave encashment which are not expected io occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the amployesa renders the related service are recognised
as a liability at the present value ol the obligation as at the
balance sheet dale.

3.8 Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are computed by dividing the
net profit after tax by the weighled average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit
after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares consldered lor deriving basic earnings per share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

Anlidilutive options are nol considered in computing
dilutive eaming pershare.



3.9 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect mathod, where
by profit after tax Is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of a non-cash nature, any delarrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipls or paymants and item of
income or expenses assoclated with investing or
financing cash flows, The cash flows are segregated inlo
operating, investing and financing activities.

3.10 Taxation

Income lax expanse represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

3.10.1 Current fax

The tax currently payable Is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit difters Irom ‘profil before tax' as
reporied inthe statement of profit and loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in othar years and lems thal are never taxable or
deductibie. The Company's current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.10.2 Delarred tax

Dalerred tax is recognised on temporary diferences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabllities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are genarally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent thal it is probable that taxable profits will be
available agains! which those deductible temporary
differences canbe utilised.

Delerred taxes are recognized in respect of temporary
differences which originate during the tax holiday perlod
but reverse after the tax holiday period. For this purpose,
reversal of temporary difference is determined using first
in first out mathod.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
axtent thatitis no longer probable that sulficlent taxabla
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset o
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the pariod in which the
ability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
{and tax laws) thal have been enacled or substaniively
enacted by the end of the reporting pariod.

Deferred tax assets include Mmimum Allernative Tax
(MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which
i llkaly to give future aconomic benefits in the form of

availability of set off against future income tax lability.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as delerred lax asset in
the balance sheel when the assel can be measured
refiably and it is probable that the future economic
benefit associated with asset will be realised.

The measuremeant ol defarred lax liabllities and assels
raflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amaount
of its assets and liabilities.

3.10.3 Cumentand deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax expense are recognisad in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate 1o
itams that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred lax expense are also recognisad in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.11 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
Balance Sheet atcost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly atributable 1o bringing the
assat to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the
managament.

Property, plant and equipment (other than buildings) are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

Capital works

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) In the course of
construction for production, supply or adminisirative
purposes aracarmied al cost, less any recognised
impairment loss, The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price or its construction cost (nel of applicable
tax cradits) and any cost directly attributable to bring the
assel into the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Management. It includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such
properties are classilied to the appropriale calegories of
proparty, plant and equipment when completed and
ready lor intended use. Parts of an item of PPE having
different useful lives and matarial value and subsequent
expendilure on PPE arising on account of capital
improvemant or other factors are accounted for as
saparate components.

in respect of Dahej Project Turnkey Contracts, the value

of supplies received at site, accepted and seftled is
treated as Capital work in progress.
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Depreciation of thasa PPE commences when the assets
are ready lor their imended use.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of PPE less their
residual values, using the straight line method over the
usaful life of PPE as specified in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 except in case ol certain items of
PPE where useful life has been consideredbased on
technical assessment. Estimated useful lives of the
assels are as follows:

Sl Usaful lives
No. Particulars (in years)

1 Buildings 1-60

2 Roads and Cubverts 3-30

3 Plant and Machinery 5-40

4 Office equipment 3-10

5 Computer and Sarver 36

6 Furniture and fixtures 10-15

7 Vehiclas 8

The sstimated useful |ives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, withthe effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions/deletions io PPE during the
year is provided on pro rata basis with reference 1o the
date of addition/deletions except for low value itlems not
exceading Rs. 5,000/ which are fully depreciated at the
time of addition.

Expenditura on overhaul and repairs on accournd of
planned shutdown which are of signilicant value (5% of
the value of particular assels) is capitalized as
component of relevant items of PPE and is depreciated
over the period lill next shutdown on straight line basis.
Catalyst whose life is more than one yearis capitalized as
property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the
guaranteed useful iife as specified by the supplier whan
the catalyst is put to use.

Insurance spares received along with the plant or
equipmaent and those purchased subsequently for
specific machinery and having immegular use are
capllalised.

Major capital spares are capitalisaed as property, plant
and equipment. Depraciation on such spares capitalised
asproperly. plant and equipment are deprecialed over
the period slarting when |t is brought into service and
continuing over the shorter of its useful life and the
remaining expected uselul life of the asset 1o which il
relates and carrying value of the spare is charged to the
stalement of profit and loss as and when replaced.

D i

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benafits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an itermn of PPE is determined
as lhe difference between the nel disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
statement of prolitand loss.

3.12 Intangible assets

3.12.1 Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amorlisation and accumulated impairmenl lossas,
Amartisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
thelr estimated uselul lives not exceeding five years from
the date of capitalisation. The estimated useful lite and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of sach
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on prospective basis.

3.12.2 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel, and are recognised in statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised.

3.12.3 Uselul lives of intangible assels
Estimated useful lives of the Software is 5Years.

3.13 Impairment of PPE and intangible

assels

Atthe end of each reporting period, the Company reviews
tha carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible assets of
acash generaling unit to datermine whather there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
lass, i any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assel is estimated in order 1o determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit o which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
prasent value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific 1o the assat for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.



If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated o be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generaling unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in statemant of profit and loss.

An assessment |8 made at the and of each reporting
period to see if there are any indications that impairment
losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may
have come down. The impairment loss is reversed, i
there has been a change in the estimates used o
determine the asset's recoverabls amount since the
previous impairment loss was recognized. If it is so, the
carrying amount of the assel is increased o the lower of
its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the assal in prior
years. After a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted
in future periods 10 allocate the assel's revised camylng
amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis
over its remaining useful lite. Reversals of Impairment
loss are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost of inventories comprises of purchase cost
and other costs incurred In bringing inventories to their
present location and condition. The cost has been
determined as under;

Raw material On First in First out
(FIFO) basis,

Finished products Al Raw material and
Corversion cost

Stock-in-process Al Raw maternal and
Proportionate
Conversion cost.

Stores and spares On weighted average cost

(othar than those basis.

capitalised as property,

plant and equipment)

and other trading goods

3.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
pastevent,itis probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to seftle the
present obligationatthe end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation, When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to seftle the present
obligation, ils carrying amount is the present value of
those cash fiows (when the effect of the time value of
money |s material).

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statemeants by way of noles 1o accounts whan an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
slatements by way ol notes to accounts, unless
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote.

3.16 Financialinstruments

Financial assels and financial kabllihes are recognised
when Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrumants.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that are directly
aftributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added o or deducled from the fair value of the financial
assels or financial llabilities, as appropriatle, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attnbutable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financlal iabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss,

Effective Interest Method

The efective interest rate thatl exactly discounts the
estimated fulure cash paymants or receipts through the
axpectad life of the financial asset and financial liabilitles
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or 1o
amortise cost of financial lability. When calculating the
effective interast rate an entity shall estimate tha
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of financial instrument but shall not consider the
expected credit losses.

3.17 Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds recelved, nel ol directissue costs,
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3.18 Financial assets
(i} Cashand cashequivalents

The company considers all highly liguid financial
instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value and having original maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase, to
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents
consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.

(i) Financial assets atamortised cost

Financial assefs are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest mathod il
these financial assets ame held within a business
whose objective is 1o hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

(ili)Financial assels at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assels are subsequently maasured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if these
financial asselsare held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both selling financial assets
and collecting contractual cash llows, the conlractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and inlerest on the principal amoun
outstanding.

(iw)Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
valua through profit or loss unless it (s measured al
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The
transaction cosls directly aftributable to the
acquisibon of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in the statermnent of profit and loss.

(v) Impairment of Financial assets

The Company assesses al each balance sheet date
whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assels is impaired. Ind AS109 requires expecled
credit losses to be measured through a loss
allowance. The Company recognises credit loss
allowance at lifetime expected credit loss modal for all
contract assels and / or all trade recelvables that do
not constitute a financing transaction.

(vi)Derecognition of financial assels

Thae Company derecognises a financial assel when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel
expire. or whenit transfers the financial assel and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the assel lo another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset Inits entirety, the
difference batween the assael's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is racognised instatement of profitand loss.

3.19 Financial liabilities

(i} Financial liabillties are initially recorded at a falr value
and subsequently financial liability are measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method except
for certain items of financial labllities which are
measured al fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL).
For trade payables maturing within one year from the
balance shaet date, the carrying amounls
approximate fair value due to short maturity of these
instruments.

(ii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when,
and only when, tha Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

3.20 Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages, if any, are accounted for as and
when recovery |8 made and the matier s considered
saitled by Management.

3.21 Segmentreporting

Operating segments ane identified and reported taking
into account the different risk and returns, the
organization structure and the Internal reporting
systems,

3.22 First-time adoption - mandatory
exceptions and optional exemptions

d.22.1 Qverall principle

The Company has prepared the opening balance shaet
as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2015 (the transition date) by
recognising all assels and liabllities whose recognition is
required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or
liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by
reclassitying items from previous GAAP fo Ind AS, as



required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in
measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.
Howavar, this principle is subject to the certain exception
and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company
as detailed below,

The Company has applied the derecognition
rmequirements of financial assets and financial liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after
April 1, 2015,

3.22.3 Classification of debtinstruments

The Company has determined the classification of debt
instruments in terms of whether they meet the amaortised
costeritenia based on the facts and circumstances that
existed as of the transition date,

3224 Impairmentof financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheel date
whether a financlal asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credil losses o
be measured through a loss allowance. The Company
recognises credit loss allowance at lifetime expected
credit loss mode| for all contract asseis and / or all trade
recalvables that do nol constitule a linancing transaction.

The Company has elected to continue with the camying
value of all of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assels racognised as of April 1, 2015
(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that carrying value as its deemed cost as ol the
transition date.

3228 mminlmmmﬂmwmm_WMn
-]

The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17
‘Leases’ for delermining whether an arrangement
contains a Lease at the transition date on the basis of
facts and circumstances existing al that date.

3.22.7 Long-term foreign currency mongtary items

The Company has adopted the same accounting policy
as par Previous GAAP for the treatment of exchange
differences arising from transiation of long-term foreign
currency monetary ilems those were recognized as at
March 31, 2016.

3.23 Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from

those involving estimations, thal the Managemant have
made inthe process of applying the Company's
accounting policies and that have the significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

a. Determination of functional currency

Currency of the primary economic environment |n which
the Company operales (“the functional cumency”) is
Indlan Rupee (Rs.) in which the company primarily
generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the

nt has assessed its functional currency 1o be
Indian Rupea (Rs.).

3.24 Assumptions and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have
the significant effect on recognition and measurament of
assats, liabilities, income and expenses is provided
below. Actual results may difier from these estimates.

a) Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assels

Managaement reviews its astimate of the useful lives of
PPE and intangible assels al each reporting date, based
on the future aconomic benafits expected to be
consumed from the assats,

b) Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a
number of critical underlying assumptions such as
standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality,
discount rate and anlicipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact
the DBO amount and the annual delined beanefit
expenses.
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5 Capital Work-in-Progress

{All amounts are in Rs. milfions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at :d"rﬂ"'“ & | capitalised As at
Particulars April 1, | March 31, during during the | March 31,
2015 2016 FY 2016-17 Year 2016-17 2017
Capital Work-in-Progress
Dual Feed Cracker and Associaled Units (DFCLU) 47760.45 | 50,718.28 20,15547 70,B873.76 -
Double Walled Storage Tank (DWST) 3,083.65 3,133.20 494,26 362746 -
Distributed Control System (DCS) 207.62 235.15 28.19 - 263.34
Butena 1 1.680.88 1.713.04 10125 1,814.289 .
Cooling Water System (CWS) 259517 188.13 74.72 262 85 .
Effluent Callection & Treatment Systern (ECTS) 1,52791 1.615.21 115.96 - 1.731.17
Integrated Unlities & Offsites (IU & Q) 1661110 | 14,058.83 -854.28 543299 767158
Pipeline and Associated work 291,43 - E - *
Inert Gas and Compressed Air System (IA/PA) 7B4.14 . . - .
Captive Power Plant (CPP) 15,762.91 | 10,802.39 94825 10.049.92 1,.750.72
Polyetiwlene (PE) 10,313.08 | 11,608.09 3,754.75 - 15,362.84
Polypropylena (PP) 589954 | 640240 1,491.04 T,B93.44 .
Product Warehouse (PWH) £.542.43 2.148.7M 56.56 2.205.27 .
Cantral Laboratory 1.196.60 161562 261.41 1.87703 -
High Density Foly Ethylene (HDPE) 10,175.45 | 10.475.39 1,07143 11,546.82
Capital Inventory - 18.88 29.28 48.16 .
MNaphtha Pipeline GCPTCL to OPal 86.28 - - - -
HDPE Pipeline from OPal to GIDG 0.03 12.59 a8.21 20.80 .
Raw Water Treatmant Plant 233.75 - . - .
Terminal Facility for GSPTCL . . - .
Temporary Warehouse - 20.99 > 20.99 E
Atal Township 0.64 6.26 0.52 - 6.78
Product Application Research Centre (PARC) . 16.52 23.67 4019 .
Ctther tangible Assets 121 21 . 21
Preservation Expenses 109.45 111.83 (111.83) - -
Finance and Interest Chames 5249185 | 86,220.72 15,648.02 87514.16 14,363.58
Incidental Expanses During Construction
inciuding Consuliancy 10,181.79 | 14.855.89 7.813.48 17,728.38 4,910.92
Green Belt Development Expenses 4725 4725 161 58.86 »
Licanse Fee 2,250.25 2,263.88 (2,263.88) - -
Othar Capital Irveniony - - 9.49 - 9.49
Other Capital Work-in-Progress - - 18.92 - 18.99
Catalyst 300.34 30754 - - 30754
Trial Run Inventory - - 1,265.16 . 1,265.16
Carrying amount of capital work-in-progress 186,147.20 | 198 60791 50,101.73 201.04748 47662.16
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5 CapitalWork-in-progress

5.1 Theassets constructed through Lump sum Tumkey (LSTK) EPC contracts are capitalized during the year as these assets
are now ready for their intended use after successful testrun. PE Swing unitand a partof DCS, CPP and IU & O assets are
under capital work in progress as at 31" March, 2017 The capitalization is carried out based on the contract value including
change orders where ever applicable except in case of LSTK packages where the commercial invoices from respective
contractors and delay analysis |s pending. The managemeant expects thal the liability will no! exceed more than the cost
recorded in the books of accounts significantly in respect of these LSTK assels. The assets are taken over by the company
from LSTK contractors ara duly certified by the managemant of the company. The insurance cover, where aver applicable,
has been undertaken by the company.

5.2 The Companentization of LSTK project assats has been carried out by technical expert appainted by the company. Based
on their reports, items of LSTK assels capitalized during financial year 2015-16, has been reclassified along with its useful
life. The effect of the same has been given in said financial year. However such reclassification and change in usetul lite has
no material impact on the financial position and perfformance of the company,

5.3 During the year the company has received 150 MT of Propylene from LSTK contractor M/s Technimont as a part of LSTK
contract on free of cost basis. The Poly Propylene (PP} produced out of the said free supply of material along with the trial
run production has been deducted from the cost of the PP plamt.

5.4 The expenditure, not directly atiributable 1o the project, has been charged to the statement of profit and loss account.
Further variances on account of foreign currency transaction/translation arising in respect of contract awarded by the
company for specific capital works, has been considered as cost of respective project to which it relates.

5.5 The expenditure, other than depreciation & interest, relating to Utility and other capitalized assets is charged to Capital
work in progress till the capitalization of core projects. as these assets are being used for pre commissioning of core

projects.
& Intangible assets {All smounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016
Computer software
Cost or deemed cost
Opening balance 169,24 143.04
Additions during the year 10.38 179.63 26.20 169.24
Less: Accumulated amorifization
Opening balance 3016 -
Addiions during the year 34.88 65.04 3016 30.16
Carrying amount of intangible assets 114.59 139.08

6.1 The Company has electad lo continue with the carrying value of ils intangible assels, recognised as of April 1, 2015
(transition date) measured as per tha previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the
transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101 'First-lime Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards!

7 Intangible assets under development (AN amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Carrying amount of As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As al April 1, 2015
Intangible assets Lnder development 24.66 1.86 120
Carrying amount of Intangible assets
Bk 24.66 1.88 120
& Loans {All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at Mareh 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Non-current| Current |[Non-current| Current |Non-current| Currenl
Securily deposils
Unsecured, considared Good 303.70 - 303.30 - 174.07 -
Total 303.70 - 303.30 - 174.07 -




10

1

12

Non-Current tax assets

(Al amounts are in As.

millionas unless otherwise staled)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Non-Current tax assels
Tax deducted at source 13.356 13.61 8.99
Income tax refund due .07 0.09 2.72
Total 16.42 13.70 12.1
Other assets {All amounts are in As. miliions unless otherwise staled)
Pa As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1. 2015
Mon-current| Current |[Non-current| Current |Non-current| Current
(Unsecured, considered good
unless otherwise stated)
{(a) Capital advances - 2,207.00 1B,265.48 - 22.174.80 -
Secured, considerad good
Unsecured, considered good
(b} Advances to related parties - - 073 - 0.91 -
(c) Advances to employees - 0.35 2 161 = 0.15
(d) Prepayment
- Prepaid expenses - 46.66 - 41.10 . 42,00
- Prepald land lease B,279.56 - 835112 " B8.569.23 -
- Prepald gas ransmission 2338 3.84 25.74 349 29.23 349
charges
(e} Other
- Custom duty advance - 9754 - - - -
- Service tax recoverable - 24.77 - 4145 T 8.97
- VAT credit receivabie = = = 177 - -
Total 8,302.94 2,380.16 26,643.07 89.42 30,7647 54.61
Deferred tax Assets (Liability)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the Standalone Balance Sheet :

{All smounts are in A,

millions unless olherwise staled)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Deferred tax assets 15.621.77 100.09 -
Deferred lax liabilities (14,162.28) (514.22) -
Ind AS adjustmeant - (B05.95) ~
Total 1,459.49 {1,020.08) -

Inventories current
(Al mounts are in As. milllons unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Raw materials 1,885.11 - -
Stock-in-trade 056 0.56 =
Work-in-prograss 2,591.556 - e
Finished goods 4.072.42 - .
Stores and spares 985.74 361.34 -
Total 8,555.38 361.80 -
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12.1 The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated innote 3.14.

12.2 During the year the company has changed method of valuation in respect of Raw material from existing weighted average to
Firstin Firstout (FIFO). In this regard the company does not envisage any significant impact on Ind AS financial statement.

13 Trade receivables - Current

(AR amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Secured, considered good 34162 - -
Unsacured, considered good - 8.34 -
Total 341.62 B.34 -

13.1 Generally the Company makes sales o its customers against advance payment or bank guarantees.

Of the trade receivables balances as at March 31, 2017 of Rs. 341.62 Million (as at March 31, 2016 of Rs. 8.34 Milkon (as at
April 1, 20150l Rs. Nil) is due from Plastic and Petrochem|cal companies,

Accordingly, the Company assesses impairment loss due from Plastic and Petrochemical companies on facts and
circumstances relevant fo each transaction. Usually, Company collects all its receivables from Plastic and Petrochemical

companies against advance payments.

The Company has concentration of credit risk due to the fact that the Company has significant receivables trom Plastic and
Petrochem|cal companies which are reputed.

13.2 Age of receivables (AN amounts are in AL milllons unleas otherwise stated)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Within the credit period 34162 - -
1-30 days past due - - -
31-60 days past due - - -
61-90 days past due - - -
More than 80 days past due - B.34 -
Total 341.62 8.34 -
14 Cash and cash equivalents {All ameunts are in As. milllons unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 | As al March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015
Balances with banks :
Curment Account 52.29 6.51 30.65
Imprast 0.14 0.09 0.02
Bank deposits for original maturity upto 3 months - - BOO.0OO
Total ) 52.43 6.60 830.67

14.1 Disclosure on specified bank notes

During the year, the Company did nol had specified bank notes or other denomination nole as defined in the MCA notification
G.5.R.308(E) dated March 31, 2017 on the detalls of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transactions during the period from
Movember 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, the denomination wise SBMs and other notes as per the notification is given below:

{Al amounis are In As. millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Other denomination
notes

Total

Parmitied recaipts
Permitied paymenis
Amount deposited in Banks

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016

-

-

Closing cash In hand as on December 30, 2016

-

* For the purposes of thia clause, tha erm 'Spocilied Bank Notes’ shall have the sama meoaning provided in ihe notification of the Gowrnmaent of indla. in the
Ministry of Finance, Depariment of Economic Affairs number 5.0 3407E). daied the 8" Movember, 2016

2




15 Other bank balances

(Al emounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Margin maney with bank 19.05 206,93 29141
Other Bank deposits for original maturity - 4.7 6,69
more than 3 months upto 12 months
Total 19.05 211.64 998.10

point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

16 Equity share capital

15.1 The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise time deposits, which can be withdrawn by the Company at any

(ANl amounts are in Re. milllons uniess olherwise staled)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 1,215

Authorised :

15,000,000,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each
(as at March 31, 2016 ; 15,000,000,000
equily shares ol As. 10 each; as at
April 1, 2015 : B,000,000,000 equity shares
of Rs. f0each)

lssued : *

2.,021,928.671 equity shares of As. 10 each
{as at March 31, 2016 : 2,021,929,671
aquity shares of Rs, 10 each; as &t April
1, 2M5: 4,589.561,058 equity shares ol
Rs. 10 each)

Subscribed and paid up :

2,021,929671 equity shares of Ra. 10 each
(as at March 31, 2016 - 2,021,929671
equity shares of RAs. 10 each; as at
Aprl 1, 2015 : 2,021,929,671 equity shares
of Rs. 10 each)

150,000.00

150,000.00

80,000.00

150,000.00

150,000.00

80,000.00

20,219.30

20.,219.30

45,695.61

20,219.30

20,219.30

45,695.61

20,219.30

20,219.30

20,219.30

Total

20,219.30

20,219.30

20,219.30

*The difierence between Ihe share caplial ssued and subscribed and paid up S on sccount of nght isswe of shanesapproved by e Company

16.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

(Al amounts are in As. milllons unless otherwise sinied)

Number of shares
Particulars in million Share capital
Balance at April 1, 2015 2,021.93 20,219.30
Changes during the year . W
Balance at March 31, 2016 2,021.93 20,219.30
Changes during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2017 2,021.93 20,219.30
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16.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Bs, 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is
entilled to one vole per share, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual Genaral Meating.

in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied 1o receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held
by the shareholders.

16.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as under:
(AN amaounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1,2015
Name of equity share holder
Mo. in million| % holding |No. in million | % holding | No. in million| % holding
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited | 99795 49.36 89795 49,36 89785 49.36
GAIL (India) Limited 864,94 49.21 994,94 4921 894,94 49.21
17 Other equity {Al amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Share appication money pending aiotment - - 7.505.52
Money received aganst shans wamants 18,739.50 18,739.50 -
Retanad m (10.629.24) (1,805.55) (56.46)
Total 8.110.26 16,933.95 7,449.06
17.1 {AN amounts are in As. millions untess otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{a) Share application money pending allotment
Balance at beginning of year - 7505.52
Less : Refund of share applicabon money - (7,505.52)
Balance at end of yoar - .
{b) Money received against share warmanis
Balance at beginning of year 18,739.50 -
Add ; Issue of share warants - 18,738.50
Balance at end of year 18,739.50 18,739.50
{c) Retained eamings
Balance at baginning of year (1,805.55) (56.46)
Loss after tax for the year (8,823.69) (1,749.09)
Add : Other comprehensive income arsing Irom re-measurement of delined - -
Balance at end of year {10,629.24) (1,805.55)

17.2 Disclosures in relation 1o money recelved against share warrants

(i Money received against share warrant represent amounts received towards warrants which entails the warrant holders,
the oplion to apply for and be allofted equivalent number of eguity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each,

(ii) Againstissue ol 1,922,000,000 no. of share warrants the balance amount payable s Rs. 480.50 million.

(iil} The equity shares to be ssued up on the exercise of the warant shall be subject lo companies Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the company and shall rank paripasu in all respect with the existing equity

shares inciuding the right with respect to dividend.

Lo



{iv) The holder of the warrant would need o exercise the right to subscribe on or before 25" August, 2019,
(v) Meither warrant nor the equity shares 1o be issued on exarcise of the warrants shall be listed on any stock exchange.

(vi) The warrant subscription price will not be adjusted towards the warranl exercise price, Il warrant is not exercised the
warrant subscription price will stand forfeited.

18 Borrowings {All amounts are in Rs. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Particuilars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Mon-current| Current |Non-current| Current |Non-current| Current
Secured - at amortised cost
L Term loans
- Rupee loan from banks 119,959.86 - | 13359791 | 21,400.00 | 12810736 | 21.249.86
- External commencial bormowings 13.349.60 - | 15.223.56 - | 1387320 =
- Rupee loan from others 3619.88 - 3,710.38 - | 506038 150.00
i . Working Capdal Loan - | b523vs2 - - - -
Unsecured - at amortised cost
I, Debentures 56,022 .85 - =1 L & s
i Loan repayahle on demand
- from banks - | 58,649.06 = | 38.100.00 = | 19.460,00
- from others - E - T95.00 = -
Sub Total 192.952.19 | 63.88748 | 152.531.85 | 60,255.00 | 147040.94 | 40,859.86
Less : Cument maturity of Long term Debt | 13,090.94 - | 2440120 . 603.66 .
Total 179,861.25 | 6388748 |128,130.65 | 60,255.00 | 146,347.28 | 40,859.86
18.1 Koy terms {All amounts are in As. millions unioes otherwine stated)
March 31, | Rate of | March 31, | Rate of April 1, Rate of
Particulars 2017 Interest 2016 Interest 2015 intarest Terms of Repayment
Repayable in 41 equal
quarterly instaiments
1. Long Term Loans starting in Q4 FY
2016-17 and ending in
. Q4 FY 2026-27
(Facility-]) 11063139 | 10.90% | 11341798 | 11.05% | 113,168.42 | 11.75% |(py Q4 FY 2016-17
and ending in 04
FY 2026-27)
Repayabla in 43
2. Long Term Loans structured quartery
instalments stariing in
. FY 2018-19 and
(Facility-) 12,048.36 | 10.90% 3.801| 11.05% = “ |endinginQ1 FY
2029-30. (FY Nil)
Repayable after 3 Years
from the date of first
disbursement, Le.
R, 18,999.33 million
in December 2016 and
3. Sub Debt - - 19,988.31 " 19,999.31 W Hi=. 9949 08 milion in
March 2017
(FY Rs. 18.993.33 million
in December 2016 and
Rs, 999,98 milion
March 2017)
Total Rupee Loan 123,579.75 137,308.29 133,167.73
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18.2 {All amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise staled)
* Rate of Interest for Sub Debt 2016-17 2015-16 201415
Rate ARate Rate
Bank Rs. in Million of Interest Rs. in Million of Int . Rs. in Million of Int 1
Bank of India - 9.999.62 10.45% 9.999 .62 10.95%
Bank of Maharashira - 4 999 87 10.45% 49949 B7 11L.00%
Jammu & Kashmir Bank - 1,999.98 10.25% 1,999 98 11.00%
Oriental Bank of Commerce - 999.98 10.45% 999.98 N.00%
State Bank of Travancone w . 1.999.86 10.70% 1.9949.86 10.80%%
Total = = 19,999.31 19,999.21
18.3 External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) {All amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise stated)
March31, | March31, | Aprl1,
Particulars 2017 2016 2015 Rate of Interest Terms of Repayment
Facility - | 6,357 723119 6,432.12 & month USD LIBOR + 347 bps
Facility - I 4238 | 482079 | 4.288.08 | 6month USD LIBOR + 352 bps ::LT“W
2,755 317158 3,153.00 & month USD LIBOR + 324 bps
Total 13,349.60 15,223.56 13.873.20
1!.‘- uﬂ"ﬂuﬂd - 'l:nmpl.lﬁuf‘f Cﬁnvﬂﬁhh n'h‘ﬂhlr“ (Al amounts are in As. milliens unleas othorwise staled)
March 31, Coupon March 31,
Particulars 2017 Rat 2016 April 1, 2015 Terms of Repayment
Serles A/ B 56,022 .85 B.75 % p.a. - 36 months from pay in date
Total 56,022.85 -

(i} The company has alloled 5,615 Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of Rs 10.00 Miliens each with a coupon rate
of 8.75% p.a to be served annually, to ICICI Bank Limited through private placement in two tranches, 3,000 CCDs on
02.072016 and 2,615 CCDs on 12.07.20186.

(i} CCDs will be compulsory convertible at par in to equity shares of the company at the end ol Tenure |.e, 36" Month from the
date of allotment.

(i) CCDs are backed by undertaking from Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC) o pay coupon amount on
debeniures in case the company fails o do so.

(iv) Accelerated put option may be excersied by ICICI Bank limited on ONGC in the event of default.
(v) ONGC will have the option to buy out at the end of 247, 30" and 35" month from pay in datei.e.02.07.2016.

(vi} There would be an option for accelerated Buy-out of debentures up to 6,150 milllons in case of receipt of binding term sheet
from equity investor for equity infusion in the company before 24 month from first pay indate.

(vii) Unconditional and imorevocable madatory put option of CCDs on ONGC at the end of 357 Month from the pay in date of the
first tranche.

18.5 Security
RupeeTerm Loans and ECB :

a) First ranking pari-passu mortgage/charge on immovable and movable properties and assets, both present and future
excepl current assels;

b) First ranking pari-passu morigagefassignment on inlangible assels relating to project both present and future; and
c) Second ranking pari-passu charge on any current asset with working capital lenders on reciprocal basis.

¥




Sub debt:

a) A subsarvient Charge by way of hypothecation in favour offfor the benefit of the Lenders over the movable fixed assats,
owned by the Borrower, both present and future, located in SEZ Dahe|, Gujarat,

18.6 Repaymentterms of ECB

a) Facility | : USD 190 million - Drawn till 31° March, 2016 USD 190 million (PY USD 250 Million Drawn till 31" March, 2015
USD 170 million)

- 4 half yearly instalments of USD 9.50 million (USD 12.50 million) each commencing from March 2016
-4 hall yearly instalmants of USD 11.40 million (USD 15.00 million) each commencing from March 2018
- 4 half yearly instaiments of USD 13.30 million (USD 17.50 million) each commencing from March 2020
- 2 half yearly instalments of USD 17.10 million (USD 22.50 milllon) each commencing from March 2022
- Last instalment of USD 19.00 million (USD 25.00 million) in March 2023

b) Facility | : USD 50 million. (PY USD 50 million)

- 2 hall yearly instalments of USD 2.50 million (USD 2.50 million) each commencing lrom March 2016

- 1half yearly instalment of USD 3,00 million (USD 3.00 million) each Payable in March 2017

- 1 half yearly instaiment of USD 4.00 million (USD 4.00 million) each Payable in September 2017

- 2 half yearly instalments of USD 6.00 million (USD &,00 million) each commencing from March 2018

- 1 halt yearly instaiment of USD 7.00 million {USD 7.00 million) each Payable in March 2019

- 2 hall yearly instalments of USD 2.50 million (USD 9.50 million) each commancing from Seplember 2019

18.7 Working Capital
(Al amounts are in Re. millions unless olherwise stated)

Mame of Bank March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 Rate of interest
Allahabad Bank 1,546.10 - - 9.45%
Indian Bank 2,000.00 - - 8.60%
Andhra Bank 1,685.00 = = 8.65%

{a) First pari-passu charge on the cument assets of the Borrower comprising of stocks, stores and spares, stock in progress,
finished goods and material in transit and book debts. Term Loan lenders lo have second charge over current assets.

{b) Second pari-passu charge along with other working capital lenders on the Borrower's lixed assets on which the long term
lenders have thea lirst charge.

{e) Firstchargeon the Trust and Retantion Accounts (except DSAA) on pari-passu basis along with the long term lenders,
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18.8 Repayment Schedule Unsecured Loan

19

21

{ Al amounis are in As. millions unless otherwss styted)

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
ETRINe Amount |Repayment| Amount |Repaymeni| Amount |Repayment
Allahabad Bank 499098 | Q1201718 | 5,000.00 | Q2 2016-17 2860.00 | Q2 2015-16
Central Bank of India 499998 | Q2201718 - - . -
Bank of India 5,000.00 | Q2201718 5,000.00 | Q1 2016-17 2500.00 | Q4 2015-16
Allahabad Bank 5,000.00 | 02201718 - - - -
Andhra Bank 500000 | O1201718 8,100.00 | Q2 2016-17 - -
Canara Bank 500000 | Q1201718 - - - .
United Bank of India 2,000.00 | Q1201718 - - - -
Canara Bank 5,000.00 |Q1201718 5,000.00 | Q1 2016-17 4100.00 | Q2 201516
Syndicate Bank 5,000.00 | Q2 2017-18 = i = &
Punjab and Sindh Bank 4,750.00 | Q221718 - - - -
United Bank of India 500000 | Q2201718 - - - -
Vijaya Bank 3,00000 | Q2201718 . " . .
Vijaya Bank 1,000.00 | Q2 201718 = a & )
Bank of Baroda 2580000 Q3201718 o . = &
Bank of India - - - - 5,000.00 | Q2 2015-16
Union Bank of India s - - -| 500000 | Q1201516
Bank of Maharashtra = . 5.000.00 | Q2 2016-17 = B
Indian Bank - 5,000.00 | Q1 2016-17 - #
Jammu & Kashmir Bank - -| 500000 | Q2201617 - -
Tata Capital - - 755.00 | Q4 2016-17 - -
Total 58,649.96 38,855.00 19,460.00
Other financial liabilities {All amounts are in As. millions unless otherwiss stated)
As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
ot Non-current| Current |Non-current| Current |Non-current| Current
Liquidated damages i 554,78 568,43 E 71104 *
Liabiity for capiial goods and senvices - 92707 B816.05 B24.9 - 3.693.05
Intesresst accrued but not due on bomowings - 3,613.868 - 1.84 - 143.00
Current maturies of long-lemm dabl - 13,090,504 2440120 - B93.66
Liabiity for employees . 8.27 . 5.15 . 23,30
Other liabiites = 1,097.77 - 84701 - 21457
Total - 19,292.69 1,384.48 25.880.11 Ti.04 4. 76758
Provisions {All amounts are in As. millions unless othorwise stated)
St As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Non-current| Cument |Non-current| Current |Non-current| Current
Provision for employee benefits
Leave 7892 283 47309 220 15.31 135
Gratuity . . . B.44 : 1.27
Total 768.92 2.83 4738 8.64 15.31 2.62
Trade payables-Current {All amounts are in As. milllons uniess cihorwise siatod)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Trade payables 418427 - -
Total 4,184.27 - -

?I-l




21.1 Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract / purchase orders. The average cradit
pariod is 30 days. Thereafter, interest is chargeable as per the lerms and conditions of the contract/ purchase orders.

21.2 Trade payables - Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises”
{All amounts are in As. millions unless otherwisa stated)
Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31,2016 | As at April 1,2015

a) Principal & Interest amount remaining unpaid
but not due as at year end 23.40 15.86 10.88

b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of
Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2008, along
with the amount of the payment made fo the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the
year = = 2

C

Interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been
pald but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest
specified under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Developmeant Act, 2006 - = &

d) Intarest accrued and remaining unpaid as at
yearend = = -

) Further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise ¥ - L

*Based on the confirmation from Vendors.

22 Other liabilities (Al amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Mon-current] Current [Non-current| Current [Non-curreni| Current
Liability for statulory paymeants - 173.17 - B4.35 = 148.61
Total - 17347 - B4.35 - 148.61
23 Revenue from operalions
The following is an analysis of the Company’s revenue for the year {All smounts are In As. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Particulars u:r':r: m 7 Il::; Mn
Sale of products 2,729.30 44 32
Less: Transher to capital work-in-progress (1,634 .82) (6.57)
Total 1,094.48 775
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24 Other income [Al amounts are in Ra, millions unless otherwise siated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulsrs March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Interest on:
Deposits with Banks 2595 55.06
Others 1015 10.58
Other non-operating income
Recovery from confractor 1.03 15.86
Profit on sale of Property Plant and Equipments 0.03 0.03
Miscellaneous receipts 6.15 4.76
Nt Foreign Exchange gain B2.65 -
Total 105.96 B6.29
Less: Transferred fo incidental expense during construction period G168 825 68
44.28 0.61
25 Raw Materlal Consumption (A5 amounts are in As. milllons uniess otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Consumption of Raw Matenal 6,545.99 -
Total 6,545.99 -
26 Purchases of stock-in-trade (AN amounts are in As, milllons unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Domestic purchase - 4241
Total - 4241
Less : Translermed to Incidental Expanse During Construction Period . .
- 42.41
27 Changes in inventories of finished goods, WIP, stock-in-trade {All amounts are in Rs. milllons unless otherwise stalod)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Closing stock of finished goods. WIP, stock-in-trade (6,663.41) {0.56)
Opening stock of finished goods, WIP, stock-in-trade 0.56 -
Decrease/{increase) in invenlories (6,663.97) (0.56)
28 Employee benefits expense {All amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Salaries, bonus and other allowances 6175 613.07
Contribution to provident and other funds 48 50 38.55
Siall wallare axpensas 15.08 912
- B26.33 660.74
Less: Transferred to incidental expense during construction period 662.27 660,74
164.06 -

|



29 Selling & Distribution expenses

N

(Al amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise staled)

Year Year ended
Particulars March 51."";?’1: March 31, 2016
Sales & Distribution - Outward Fright 22.72 -
Sales & Distribution - Rent Expense 14.30 .
Sales & Distribution - Tank Hire Charges-Chemicals 50.90 -
Sales & Distribution - Clearing & Forwarding Expense 2.90 .
Sales & Distribution - Others 0.23 [1 K1) ]
Advertisement Expensas 22.73 2741
Business Promotion 6.20 0:30
Subscription & Mambership Expansas 12.51 788
Other Sales & Distribution Expense 14.82 .
14731 35.70
Less: Transterred to Incidental expense during construction period 59.00 3570
88.31 .
Finance cost {All amounts are in Fis. millions uniess ciherwise staisd)
Year ended Year ended
Pticutars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Interest :
- Bomowings from Banks and Others 229541 20,528.81
- Other Finance Charges - 12.55
Interest expense for fair value of Security Deposits 3.76 -
Exchange differences regarded as an adiustment to borrowing costs {254.38) 1.222.08
22,703.49 21,863.43
Less: Transferred 1o incidental expense during construction period 15,648.02 21,551.73
7,055.47 311.70
Depreciation {All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Posticulnes March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Depreciation of property. plant and equipmant 342732 314,39
Less: Alliocated to Incidental expense during construction period - 66.82
Total 3.42732 24757
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32 Other expenses
(All amounts are in As. milllons unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Paic March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Rates, duties and taxes 60.69 4.05
Consumption of Spares 239.10 50.51
Amortisation of land development expense 208.52 208.11
Travel and Conveyance 13.66 88.99
Insurance expense 1723 1.94
Power and fuel 6,172.90 297146
Rent 113.96 99.16
Repairs and maintenance - Building 20.96 2.94
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 73.10 34 .56
Repairs and maintenance - Others nis 4.77
Internal audit feas 0.86 0.28
Statutory audit fees 0.90 0.50
Business development expense 1.32 5.25
Training - 0.20
Plant innaugration expensa 70.20 =
Sponsorship 709 2.37
Security expenses 58.43 49.80
Water and alectricity charges 28193 16787
Printing and Stationary 3.06 2.05
Expense on assets not owned by Company 53.31 1.365.44
Carelaking expensas 35.81 15.23
CSR expenditure (Refer note 32.2) 0.06 0.12
Relocation expense 736 10.40
Storage rental for naphta 567.25 -
License fees 4.65 -
Miscallaneous expanses (Refer note 32.1) 24748 160.94
Sub Total 8,371.58 5,257.04
Less: Transterred to incidental expense during construction period 6.548.47 5.,080.79

1,823.11 166.25

L




Miscellaneous expenses
{All smounts are in As. milllons unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Inward Material Handling Related Expense a.n2 0.37
Custom Duty Exp-Special Additional Duty Chemical 0.17 -
Material Handling Expense Within Plant 0.67 %
Others Factory Expenses 0.10 0.59
Hiring Of Cranes 3.30 169
Repalr - It Services 16.28 258,76
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 15772 85.99
Medical Faciltiy At Plant 0.81 -
Safety Expenses 6.39 2.46
General Expenses Office 6.35 565
Internel Expenses 138 1.18
Out Of Pocket Expensea 140 184
Canteen Expenses 6.57 a8,
Posiage & Telegraph Expenses 0.36 0.40
Telaphone Expenses 11.38 B.66
Seminar & Conference Expenses 6.49 521
Director Sitting Fees 0.80 0.75
Medical Center Expenses 151 -
Recruitment Expenses 11.34 413
Stipend Expenses 0.19 039
Miscelianeous Expenses 1125 2.96
Total 24748 160.94

32.2 The company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee. In absence of profit, the company is not
required to spend any amoun! towards the same. However, the company has spent As. 0.068 million during the year
(Year ended March 31, 2016 R=.0.12 million).
Year ended Year ended
Payment to Audilors March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Audit Fees 0.80 0.50
Othar Services 0.35 0.36
Traveling and Out ol Pocket Expensas 0.06 0.05
Total 1.30 0.91
33 Income taxes {All amounts are in Re. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Deferred tax
In respect of currant year (2,479.57) 1,020.08
Total (2,479.57) 1,020.08
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34 Earnings per share {All amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise staied)
Year ended Year ended
e March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Basic eamings per equily share (in Rs.) (4.36) (0.87)
Face value per equity share (in Rs.) 10 10

MNote: Potential aquity shars namely share waments and Compulsory Convertible Debantures ans heving antidilutve afect on the EPS,
34.1 Basicearnings pershare

The eaming attributable to eguity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of

basic earnings per share are as lollows: i N

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Loss for the year aftributable to equity shareholders (8.,823.68) (1.748.09)
: Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of
basic eamings per share 202103 2,02183

34.2 Afer the end of the reporting period, the company has subscribed to allot 1,671 Compulsory Convertible Debentures
{CCDs) of Rs. 10.00 Millions each with a coupon rate of 76829 % p.a to be served annually 1o Kotak Bank for 200 CCDs and
Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund Limited for 1,471 CCDs through RFF for the CCDs, The same shall be converted into equity share at
the and of 36 months.

35 Operating lease arrangements
35.1 The Company as lessee

35.1.1 Leasing arrangements

The Company has certain office and Land on operating lease which are cancellable by giving appropriate notice as per the
respective arrangements. During the year Rs. 29.53 million (year ended March 31, 2016 Rs. 27.30 million) had been paid
towards cancellable operating lease.

35.12 Payments recognised as an expense {All amounts are in Ais. milllons unless olherwise staled)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Minimum lease payments 29.53 27.30
29.53 2730
35.13 Non-cancellable operating lease commitments (ANl amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)
Particula As at As at As at
i March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Mot kater than one year B6.26 72.08 70.42
Later than one year and not later than five years 401.31 355.70 352.10
Later than live years 1,182.72 1,161.94 1.220.62
1,680.29 1,589.69 1,643.14

36 Employee benefit plans

=




36.1 Defined contribution plans:
Provident Fund

The Company |s registerad under Provident Fund Act and monthly contributions are made by employees as per terms of
the Act. Matching contribution is made by the Company and the amount is deposited with provident fund authority. On
retirement or separation, the contributions made are payable by the Provident Fund authority to the respective

employees.

The total expense recognised Rs, 28.56 Million (for the year ended March 31, 2016 Rs. 22.34 Million) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

36.2 Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
15 days salary (15/26 » last drawn basic salary plus dearmess allowance) for each completed year of service,

Schema |s funded through own Gratuity Trust "ONGC Petro Addilions Employees Group Gratuity Trust? The liability for
gratuity as above is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

36.3 Other long term benefits
Brief description: A general description of the type of other long term benelits ara as follows:

Earned Leave (EL) Banafit
Accrual - 30 days per year
Encashment while In service - 75% of Earned Leave balance subject to a maximum of 90 days per calendar year

Encashment on retirement/resignation - maximum 300 days

Good Health Reward (Half pay leave)

Accrual - 20 days per year

Encashment while in service - Nil

Encashment on retirement/death - 50% ol Hall Pay Leave balance.

The Hability for the same is recognized annually on the basis of actuarial valuation.

36.4 Thesa plans typically expose the Company to actuarnal risks such as: investment risk, Interest rate risk, longevity risk and

salary risk.
(ANl amounts are in Re, millilens unless otherwise staled)

The present value of the defined benefll plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which Is
determined by relerence 1o market Kladda al the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
| . ¢ sk When there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan assel is below this rate, it will create

a plan deficit. Currently, for these plans, invesimenls are made in government securities, dabt
instruments, short-lerm debl instruments, equity instruments and asset backed, trust structured
securilies as per notification of Ministry of Finance.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan llability; however, this will be partially offsat
by an increase in the return on the plan's investmants.

The presant value of the dafined benelit plan liability is caloulated by reference to the best estimate of
Longevity risk | the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expeciancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference 1o the future salaries of
Salary risk plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability,

Interest risk

Mo other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

In respect of the above plans, the most recen! actuarial valuation ol the plan assels and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation ware camied out as at March 31, 2017 by M's. Charan Gupta Consultants Private Limited Fellow firm of the Institute of
Actuaries of India. The prasent value of the defined banefit obligation, and the related curment service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the projected unit credit method.
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36.5 The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
{AN amounts ara in Ae. milllons unleas olherwise statod)

<4 Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 |  April 1,2015
Gratuity
i Discount rate 731% B.00% 7.50%
ii Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00% 8.00%

The discount rate is based upon the market yield available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches.
Tha salary growth takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant tactors on long-tarm basis.

36.6 Amounts recognised in the financial statements before allocation in respect of these defined benefil plans are as follows:

Gratuity: {All amounts are in As. milllons unloss olherwise stalod)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Service cost :
Current service cost 18.46 12.63
Past service cost and (gain)/floss from settlements - -
Net interest expanse 0.51 0.10
Increase/decrease due to adjustment in opening corpus consequent 1o audit - -
Components of delined benefit costs recognised in employee benefit expenses 18.96 12.73
Re-measurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Raturn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interas! axpanse) (0.31) (0.47)
Actuarial (gains)losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial {gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 5.55 5.54
Actuarial {gains)y/losses arising from experience adjustments (3.50) (2.56)
Components of Re-measurement 1.73 2.50
Total 20.70 15.23

The components of re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability recognised in other comprehensive income is

As. 1.73 million (Previous Year Rs. 2.50 Million),

38.7 Movementsin the presant value ol the defined benef|l obligation are as lollows:

Gratuity: (All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particutars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016

Opening defined banefit obligation 26.39 10.70
Current service cost 18.46 12,63
Interast cost 2N 0.80
Re-measurement (gains)losses:

-Actuanal gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
-Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 555 5.54
-Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustmants (3.50) (2.58)

Pasl service coal, including losses/{gains) on curtailmenls - -
Liabifities extinguished on sefttlemants -

Liabilities assumed in a business combination - -
Banelils paid (1.02) {0.72)
Closing defined benefit obligation 4799 26.39
Current obligation 0.79 0.54
MNon-current obligation 4720 25.85

]



36.8 The amount included in the Balance Sheel arising from the enlity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as

follows:
Gratuity: {&il amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 47048 26.39 10.70

Fair value of plan assets 38.45 19.85 9.43

Funded status 9.54 6.44 127

Net llability arising from defined benefit cbligation (8.54) (6.44) (1.27)

36.9 Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Gratuity: {All amounts are in Rs. millions uniess otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016

Opening fair value of plan assets 19.85 9.43
Adjustment in opening corpus consaquent o audit - -
Interest income 160 0.71
Re-measurement (gains)/losses:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 031 047
Contributions from the employer 1761 10.06
Benefits paid {1.02) (0.72)

Expacted contribution in respect of Gratuity for next year will be As. 25.94 million.
36.10 The fairvalue of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows:
(AN amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise staled)

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015

Fair value of plan asset of Gratuity Trust:

Managed through LIC 38.45 19.95 9.43

Total 38.45 19.85 9.43

The actual return on plan assets of gratuity was Rs. 1.91 million (As atMarch 31, 2016 Rs. 1,18 million).

36.11 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation ame discount rate and expected salary
increass. The sansitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all ather assumptions constant.

36.12 Sensitivity analysis as at March 31,2017

(Al amounts are in Rs. millions unleas otherwise staled)

Significant actuarial assumptions Gratuity
Discount rate
- |mpact due (o increase of 50 basis poinls (4.31)
- Impact due to decrease of 50 basis points 4.86
Salary increase
- Impact due to increase of 50 basis points 4m
- Impact due to decrease of 50 basis points (4.23)
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36.13 Sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2016

(ANl amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)

Significant actuarial assumptions Gratuity
Discount rate
- Impact due to increasa ol 50 basis points (2.37)
- Impact due fo decrease of 50 basis points 2.67
Salary increase
- Impact due to increase of 50 basis points 261
= Impact due to decreasa of 50 basis points (2.34)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may nol be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligation as it
is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
corralated, Sansitivity due lo mortality and withdrawals are not malerial and hence impact of change not calculated.

Furthermore, In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method al the end of the reporting period, which is the same as thal applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance shest,

37 Segmentreporting
37.1.1 Business Segment:

The company is having only one reportable segment i.e. Plastic and Petro Chemicals products,

37.1.2 Geographic Segment:
(Al amounis are in As. milllons unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operation
Within India EB3.55 arys
Outside India 53093 -
Hon Current Assels
Within India 281.681.92 252.969.05
QOutside India - -
37.1.3 Information about customers: {All amounts are in As. millions unless otherwine siated)
Year ended Yoar ended
Particulars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Major Customers® 530.93 34 .82
Others 563.55 2.93

* reprosents 10% or more ol company's sales revanu,
38 Related party disclosures
38.1 Name of related parties and description of relationship:
A. JointVentures
1 0il & Nalural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC)
2 GAIL (India) Limited (GAIL)
3 Gujarat State Petroleurn Corporation Limited (GSPC)
B. Common Directorship

1 Dahej SEZ Limited (DSL)
2 Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemical Limited (MRPL)

ot



C. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

1 Shri Dinesh K.Saral (Chairman)

2 Shri Avinash Joshi (Managing Director) (w.e.t. 01.02.2017)

3 Shri T.K.Sengupta (Director)

4 Shri M, Ravindran (Director) (up 1o 18.01.207)

& Shri M.M.Chitale (Independent Director)

6 Shri 8.Balachandran (Independent Director)

7 Shri M.B.Lal (Director)

B Ms. Suman Singh Gaur {Director) (up to 31.01.2017)

8 Shri PK.Gupta (Director)

10 Shri K. 5.Jamestin (Director) (up o 01.08.2014)

11 Shri A_K_Banarjee (Director) (up to 01.05.2015)

12 Shri Ajay Kumar Dwived| (Director) (up to 01.12.2015)

13 Shii Tapan Ray (Director) (up o 30.09.2014)

14 Shri Atanu Chakraborty (Director) (up to 26.05.2015)

18 Shri S Venkatraman (Director) { up o 30.09.2014)

16 Shri Prabhat Singh (Director) (up to 14.09.2015)

17 Shri A.K.Srinivasan (Director) (w.e.l. 01.12.2015)

18 Shri Sanjib Datta (Director) (w.e.f. 18.01.2017)

19 Mr. K. Satyanarayana (Chief Executive Officar)

20 Mr. Trinath Behera (Chial Financial Officer) (w.e.l. 01.07 2015)
21 Mr. §.P. Bandopadhay (Chief Financial Officer) (up to 31.01.2015)
22 Mr. Rajendra Parakh (Chief Financial Officer) (From 01.04.2015 to 30.06.2015)
23 Mr. Subodh Prasad Pankaj (Company Secretary)

24 Mr. Manoj Srivastava (President) (w.e.f. 15.03.2017)

25 Mr. Saumya Chakraborty (COO) (w.e.l, 01.03.2017)

26 Mr. J.5.Sainl (COO) (up to 08.06.2016)

D. Relativies of Key Management Personnel (KMP)

1 Mr. Santosh Kumar Kotipalli {Relative of KMP)

38.2 Detalls of transactions:

38.2.1 Transactions with joint ventures I m—
Name of Year ended Year ended
related party DR Y M March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016

A. Reimbursement of expenses on behalf of OPal:

a) ONGC Reimbursement of expense 8564 118,10

b) GAIL Reimbursement ol expense 10.67 510
B. Reimbursement of expenses by ONGC:

a} ONGC  Reimbursement of expense by ONGC 0.30 0.15
C. Share application money refunded:

a) ONGC  Application money refunded - 7.505.52
D. Purchase:

a) ONGC Purchase of gases 16,174.B8 -

b} GAIL Purchase of gases 635.70 -

g} GSPC Purchase of gases 3.028.76 29716
E. Share warrants

a) ONGC  Money received against share warrants = 1B,739.50
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38.2.2 Quistanding balances with joint ventures
(AN amounts are in Ae. millions unleas otherwiss stated)
As at As al As al

T O Fmiaat Dty Nature of transaction March 31, 2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015
A. Amount payable:

a) ONGC Reimbursement of axpensa 4795 48.65 6710

b) ONGC Purchase of Feed Stock 1,759.07 & -

c) GAIL Reimbursement of expense 735 14.08 112

d) GSPC Purchase of gas - 128.32 -
B. Share application money;

a) ONGC Share application money panding

allotment - - 7,505.52

C. Share warrant:
a) ONGC Share warrant pending allotment 18,739.50 18,739.50 .

D. Amount recelvable:

a) GAIL Security deposit 1.60 1,80 1.60
Other advances - - om

38.2.3 Transactions with common directorship
{AN amounts are in A milllons unless otherwise sisted)

Name of related party Nature of transaction "m;;“’;“ M:-:I:-;t"d;m
A. Reimbursement of expenses:

a) MRPL Reimbursement for manpower 6.08 5.69

b) DSL Lease Rent & ROU Charges B4.64 69.50

38.2.4 Outstanding balances with commaon directorship
{All amounts are in Rs. millions uniess otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Name of related party Mskure of transaation March 31, 2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015

A. Amount payable:

a) MRPL Reimbursement of expense 1m 0.45 0.43
b) DSL Provision for lease rent T0.00 64.03 63.38

B. Amount receivable
a) D5L Advance rent pald for ROU 0.73 0.73 A
Security daposit 0.45 0.45 083

38.2.5 Transactions with Relative of KMP
(Al amounts are in As. milliens unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Santosh Kumar Kotipalli Remuneration 0.02 0.19
Other Employee Benefit 0.07 0.04

o




38.2.6 Compensation of key management personnel

(All amounts are in Rs. milllons unless otherwise sta

Particulars m am:r u:ﬁ ﬁmu
Short term amployes banefits 14.71 16.656
Director Sitling Fees 0.80 0.75
Post-employment benelits (Includes provision for leaves, gratuity and other post-
retirement benefits) 182 186
Other long-term benefits (includes contribution o provident fund) 0.44 0.36
Total 1787 18.62

39 Financial instruments

39.1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as a going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debl and equity balance.

The company maintains its financial framework to support the pursult of value growth for shareholders, while ensuring a secure
financial base. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid fo

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sall assels o reduce debl.

The Company’s management reviews the capllal struclure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the management
considers tha cost of capital, risks associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

39.2 Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period is as follows:

(Al amounts are in Re. milllons unieas otherwise staled)

As at As at As at
Particutars March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015
Diat 180,420 .44 129.693.0 150,569.81
Cash and bank balances 52.43 6.60 B30.67
Met debt 180,368.01 129.68731 149.735.14
Total equity 28.328.56 37153.25 27668.36
Net debt to equity ratio 6.72 3.49 541

39.2.1 Dabil is defined as long-term and short term borrowings as described In notes 1o accounts,

39.3 Categories of financial instruments

(Al amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
{a) Trade receivables 34162 834 =
(b} Cash and cash equivalents 52.43 6.60 830.67
{c) Other bank balances 19.05 21164 998.10
{d) Loans 303.70 303.30 174.07
Financial liabllities
Measured al amorlised cost
{a) Bormowings 24374873 188,385.65 18720714
() Trade payable 4,184 .27 - -
{c) Other financial liabilities 19,292.69 27264.59 5.478.62
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39.4

395

39.6

39.7

|

Financial risk management objectives

While ensuring liquidity i sufficient to meet Company's operalional requirements, the Company's management also
monitors and manages key financial risks relating to the operations of the Company by analysing exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising frorm possible market price movements and their impact on the future
performance of a business. Tha major components of market risk are foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate
risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies, primarily for purchases of G2, C3 & C4 (Feed
stock) and exports sales and has borrowings denominated in foreign currency; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Significant carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monatary assals and
monetary liabilities atthe end of the reporting period are as follows -

{AN amounts are in As. millions uniess otherwise stated)

Liabilities Assets
Particulars As al As at As al As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015 | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
uso 22,086.48 1541141 14,636.92 348.14 - -
GBP 6.82 10,30 19.63 - - -
EURO 402.58 182.63 368.10 - - -
JPY - - 11.69 - - -

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposad to the currency United States Dollar (USD). Sensitivity of profit or loss arises mainly from
USD denominated receivables and payables. As per management's assessment of reasonable possible changes in the
axchange rate of +/- 5% between USD-INR currency pair, sensitivity of profit or loss only on outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items at the period end Is presented below:

(Al amounts are in As, milllons unkess otherwise stated)

USD senaRivity st yesr end Karon 3%, 9017 | Sasch 3, 2018 Apﬂf:,.ztﬂli
Receivables:
Weakening of INR by 5% 1741 . -
Strengthening of INR by 5% (1741) . =
Payables:
Weakening of INR by 5% (1,104.32) (770.57) (731.85)
Strengthening of INR by 5% 1,104.32 77057 731.85

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Company does not have outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at March 31, 2017
Interest rate risk management

The Company has availed borrowings al fixed and floating interest rates. hence is exposed to interest rate risk. The
Company has not entered into any of the interest rate swaps and hence the Company is exposed fo interest rate risk.



39.9.1 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

39.10

J9.11

Tha sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. For floating rate barrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the borrowings outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding lor the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used for disclosing the
sensitivity analysis.

ifinteras! rates had baan 50 basis points higherlower and all other variables wera held conslant, the Company's profit or
the year ended March 31, 2017 would decreasefincrease by Rs. 1,284.80 million (for the year ended March 31, 2016
decreasefincrease by As.1,063.85 million). This is mainly aftributable o the Company's axposure 10 interes! rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting In financial loss 1o the
Company. Credil risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks as well as customers including
receivables. Credit risk management considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking Information including
indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro-economic information (such as regulatory changes,
government directives, market interest rate).

Only high rated banks are considered for placement of deposits. Bank balances are held with reputed and creditworthy
banking institutions.

Liguidity risk management

The Company manages lquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents including bank deposits and
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of iquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. In addition, liquidity managemant also involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assels necessary 1o
meet obligations by maiching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liquidity
ratios. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves and continuously moniloring lorecast and
actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and fiabilities.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repaymeni periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The lables include both interast and principal cash
flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required 1o pay.

(Al amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

Weighted
average Less |1month-| 1year- Morethan| _ . | Camying
effective |1 month| 1year | 3years | 3years amount
interest rate
As at March 31, 2017
External Commercial Borrowings = 2.028.84 | 5215.20| 6,10736| 13,351.40| 13.351.40
Long Term Loans = 11,063.90 | 22,581.00| 89.934.84|123,579.74|123,579.74
Total - 13,092.74 | 27,796.20 | 96,042.20|136.931.14| 136,931.14
As at March 31, 2016
External Commercial Borrowings = 183771 | 4453.56| 9,134.14| 15,225.40| 15,225.40
Laquanans - 2.781.60 | 22,186.17 | 92.341.11| 117.309.08| 117309.08
Total = 4,419.51 | 26,639.73 | 101,475.25132,534.49(|132,534.49
As at April 1, 2015
External Commarcial Eumngs . B36.66 | 322867 9.950.87| 14,016.20| 14,016.20
Long Term Loans - 2,760.21 | 22,081.64 | B8,326.57|113,168.42| 113,168.42
Total - 3,596.87 | 25,310.32 | 9827744 | 127184.62| 127184.62

** As por dotalls given under the head non curronl Liabsdty = Fnancial Lisbility » Borrowsngs
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The kllowing table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The
inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order fo understand the Company's liquidily risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

(AN amaunts are in As. milllens unless olherwise stalod)

Weighted

average Less | 1month- | 1year- | More than Total Carrying

effective |1 month| 1year 3 years 3 years amount

interest rate

As at March 31, 20017
Trade Receivables - 34162 - - - 34162 34162
Loans - 1.47 36.67 - 313.85 as1.99 35199
Total - 343.09 36.67 - 313.85 693.61 693,61
As at March 31, 2016
Trade Recaivables - - B8.34 - - 8.34 B.34
Loans - 0.24 23512 = 309..M 54527 545,27
Total - 0.24 243.46 - 309.91 553.61 553.61
As at Aprili, 2015
Fixed Deposits with Banks - 800.00 - - - 800.00 800.00
Trade Receivables - . = - . - -
Loans - 212.76 B0O2.30 - 189.82 1.20488 | 1.204.88
Total - 1,012.76 802.30 - 189.82 2,004.88 2,004.88

Fair value measurement

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial
stalemants approximalte their falr values,

40 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities:

40.1 Claims against the Company/disputed demands not acknowledged as debt:
(Al amounts are in As. millions unless otherwise stated)

Sr. As at As at As at

No. Partulers March 31, 2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015

1 Demand for stamp duty of Rs. 2 million by Deputy Commissioner
of Revenue & Stamps for foreign bank guarantes submitted by
Samsung Engineering Co. Lid, (South Korea) and Linde AG
(Germany) which is considered as bond eligible for payment of 2.00 2.00 2.00
stamp duty. The said stamp duty # ulimately becomes payable
has to be paid with 2% penalty p.m. from the date of execution of
the document till the date of payment,

Professional charges payable to Royal Bank of Scotland

2 (now taken over by HSBC) and N M Rothschild & Sons. 43.50 43.50 43.50
3 | Storage rental charges including interest payable to M's. GCPTCL 232.59 383.33 -
i Technimont, SpA, ltaly for quantum of loss suffered on differant

counts {PE swing unit) 2,729.9 2mrza .
5 Technimont, ICB Ltd. for quantum of loss suffered on different

counts (PP unil) 1.474.93 1,583.20 -
8 Amount of Premium charged by ONGC on account of Purchase

of Maphiha & C2 not cosidered as payable by OPal. 240.73 = -
7 | LSTK Contractors 4,864 .13 . .

i



40.2 Guarantees and commitments executed by the Company (to the extent not provided for)

40.2.1 Guarantees executed for financial obligations:
(Al amounls are in Rs. milllons unless otherwise staled)
As at As al As at

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2N5

Particulars

Guarantee

* The company has executed a Performance Bond-cum-Legal
undertaking in favor of the President of India acting through the
Development Commissionar of Kandla, Special Economic Zona
and the Specified Officer, binding itself to follow and accept the
Special Economic Zone Act and Rules provided thereunder and
also the terms, as prescribed In Development Commissioner's
Letter of Approval Mo. KASEZ/P&C/6/28/07-08/7722 Daled
16.10.2007

23,000.00 23,000.00 23,000.00

Gauraniees execution for linancial cbligation in form of comfort
Lettars issued 123.22 14762 607.35

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts ramaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for 6,761.52 11,582.89 18.238.67

41 During the year the company has changed method of valuation in respect of Raw material from ex|sting weighled average io
First in First out (FIFQ). In this regard the company does not envisage any material impact on the financial position
and performance of the company.

42 Procurement of principal raw maferials (AM) i.e. Maphtha, C2, C3 and C4 have been recorded in SAP through direct F| eniries
and consequently its consumption quantity and value detalls are worked out outside SAP System. The stock of finished goods,
semi-finished goods and work in progress is valued at net realizable value (NRV) as the cost of production of these inventones is
higher considering the fact that the various units of company are in stabilizalion stage and working at about 40 % ol |1s capacity.

Intermediate products of DFCL plant, which are not intended for sale but being reused in the sald plant, are valued at the
cost of principal RM {(Naphtha).

The management does not envisage any matenal Impact on Ind AS Financial Statement in this regard,

43 Ws Fernas construction India Private Limited (Feras) was awarded contract based on evaluation done by Englneers India
Limited (EIL) for Rs. 12,100.90/- million (including approved change order) for integrated Utilities and offsite (IU & Q). The matter
of gualification and award of IU & O package on Fernas has been investigated by the competent authority at the instance of EIL.
The investigation has established that the completion certificate submitted by Fernas for qualification |s bogus as the same was
oblained in connivance with the officer and employees of EIL. As per information, criminal proceedings have been initiated
against representatives ol Fernas and EIL and the matter is sub judice. The company has expelled the contractor vide its
letter no-OPal/BDA/CED/PCC/325/16-17 dated 27" April, 2017 pursuant to remedies available in the contract on account of
breach ol contract. The company has invoked the bank guarantee for Rs.1,844.37 millien in its possession against the
contractor. The management does not envisag any material financial liability in this regard.
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44 Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015
{All amounts are in As. milllons uniess otherwise statod)

As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015
(End of last period
FRISOU Y Notes | resented under | (Date of transition)
Previous GAAP)
Total equity (shareholders’ funds) under Previous GAAP 37,905.13 27,711.35
Adjustments:
Adjustment of share issue expenses with aquity share capital 1 (42.99) (42.99)
Adjustments OCI Y (708.88) -
Total adjustment to equity (751.88) (42.99)
Total equity under Ind AS 37153.25 27,668.36
Explanation :

1. Dueto Ind AS 32, the share issue expense is adjusted against other aquity.
2. All other adjustment are already stated in OCI reconciliation,

45 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,2016
(ARl amounts are in As. milliens unless othorwise statod)

Year ended
March 31", 2016
Particulars Explanation (Latest period
presented under
Previous GAAP)
Loss as per Previous GAAP {1,040.20)
Adjustments:
Depreciation Componetisation 1 5457
Deferred tax impact 2 (605.95)
Amortisation of Leasehold Land 3 (157.51)
Total Adjustment (708.89)
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS (1,749.08)
Note: Under Previous GAAF, total comprehensive incoma was not reported. Therefore, the above reconciliation stars with Profitvioss
under the Previous GAAP
Explanation :

1. Due to Componentisation working, certain fems of PPE are reclassified and usaful life of the same am changed. Due to
that net change In depreciation is work outs 1o be Rs.54.57 million.

2. Due to change in the figura of the loss for the year ended 31 March, 2016 as per Ind AS, revised deferred tax expense is
made and the elfect of the same is Rs. 605.94 million.

3. Total amortisation for the last year i.e. 2015-16 was Rs, 208. 11 million out of which As. 50.51 million is charged to CWIP and
the balance is charged to P & L account.

46 Figures in parenthesis as given in these Notes to Financial Statements relate to previous years.
47 Approval of financial statements

The Financial Statements were approvad for issue by the board of directors on 22™ May, 2017,
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